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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EN X8

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results of Common Splendor International
Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PROSPECTS

The Group is committed to building itself into an international leading
healthcare conglomerate. It is expected to focus on life healthcare and
industrialization development in respect of human health solutions. By
employing the development strategy of “global integration, global layout”,
the Group will continue to draw in top talent and technology, deploy
services, products and various resources, and through acquisition
and reorganization, in order to achieve rapid expansion in the life
healthcare industry, as well as seeking various investment development
opportunities from time to time in the healthcare field.

At present

Following the Group’s adjustments to its development strategy in
the recent years, the Group has already formed a complete business
structure in the medical anti-aging sector, including “Life Anti-aging”
which mainly aims at inner and “Medical Beauty Anti-aging” which
mainly aims at outer, and “Health Preservation Base”, an inherited
Chinese cultural legacy, “Health Preservation Anti-aging”. As long as
China continues its economic growth, the wealthy population and the
number of elites will continue to expand and their spending power will
be strengthened. In addition to the basic clinical services, demand for
life healthcare services is expected to be ever increasing. Despite the
fearful competition in the market, the Company believes that the Group
has established an respectable position in this arena and will gradually
expand its businesses on such basis.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 January 2019,
the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement to acquire
88.5184% of the issued share capital of the Shenzhen Aidigong
Maternity Health Management Co., Ltd. (“Aidigong”). Upon completion,
Aidigong will become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and its financial results will be consolidated to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. With the relaxation of its birth control
policy through the implementation of the two-child policy in the PRC in
2015, together with the increase in the per capita disposable income and
per capita healthcare expenditure in the PRC, the Directors are of the
view that the maternal and child healthcare related services have a rigid
demand and the overall market will continue to grow rapidly.
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The Board continues to be optimistic on the outlook of the healthcare
industry and will, from time to time, adjust the Group’s development
strategy according to the industry changes as and when needed. The
Group’s overall strategy is to gradually optimise its main business, and
develop its core businesses while holding the largest possible stake in
such core businesses. Non-core businesses and segments of the Group
is expected to be held by way of investments and be adjusted as and
when appropriate based on the principle of profit maximisation, including
disposals or held as investment funds.

APPRECIATION

| ' would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Shareholders for their continued support, and the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) and those who have worked for the Group for
their valuable contributions.

On behalf of the Board
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited

Cheung Wai Kuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to HK$377,035,000
(2017: HK$474,933,000), which represented a year on year decrease
of HK$97,898,000 or 20.6%. The decrease was mainly due to the
net effect of (i) decrease in sales revenue of the natural health food
business from HK$323,856,000 in 2017 to HK$249,795,000 in 2018; (i)
increase in sales revenue from the medical anti-aging health preservation
base from HK$63,622,000 in 2017 to HK$108,132,000 in 2018; (iii)
decrease in sales revenue of medical and healthcare industry investment
management from HK$63,558,000 in 2017 to HK$6,843,000 in 2018;
and (iv) decrease in loan interest income from HK$23,897,000 in 2017 to
HK$12,265,000 in 2018.

Gross profit of the Group for the Year amounted to HK$97,543,000
(2017: HK$83,381,000), an increase of HK$14,162,000 or 17.0%
as compared to previous year. Gross profit margin for the Year had
increased and was 25.9% for 2018 (2017: 17.6%). The increase in the
Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to the
increase in income generated from the medical beauty anti-aging group
which has a high profit margin.

Profit before income tax of the Group for the Year increased by
HK$1,637,000 or 9.0% from HK$18,239,000 in 2017 to HK$19,876,000
in 2018. The increase in profit was mainly due to the net effect of (i)
having less convertible notes, guaranteed notes and bonds payable
resulting in an decrease of finance costs amounting to approximately
HK$37,724,000 in 2018 compared to HK$41,346,000 in 2017; (i)
the increase in revenue and gross profit of the medical anti-aging
business; (iii) increase in dividend income from unlisted investments
(included in other income) from nil in 2017 to HK$3,355,000 in 2018;
(iv) increase in administrative expenses from HK$40,683,000 in 2017 to
HK$64,005,000 in 2018; (v) increase in share of result of associates from
HK$8,822,000 in 2017 to HK$17,731,000 in 2018; (vi) decrease in gain
on disposal of subsidiaries from HK$12,617,000 in 2017 to nil in 2018
and (vii) increase in gain on derecognition of convertible notes from nil in
2017 to HK$7,391,000 in 2018.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$2,160,000 (2017: HK$1,422,000), which represented
an increase of HK$738,000 or 51.9%, as compared to 2017. This
resulted in the increase in basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK0.07 cents and HKO0.07
cents respectively (2017: HK0.05 cents and HK0.05 cents respectively).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of healthcare industry, which included medical anti-aging and health
preservation base, medical and healthcare industry investment
management and trading of natural health food, and investment and
finance activities.

Health Industry
Medical Anti-aging and Health Preservation Base

Realyoung Life is dedicated to life anti-aging business for high-end
people “Body Purification, Functions Modulation and Repair and
Reborn” trilogy life anti-aging. The Group has set up three Life Anti-
aging Centres, namely, (i) Life Anti-aging Centre located at Guangzhou
International Biological Island, the PRGC; (i) Life Anti-aging Centre situated
at Qiaocheng East Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC; and (i)
Life Anti-aging Centre situated at Luofu Mountain, Guangdong, the PRC
which is currently under construction.

With a view to expand the Group’s business on life anti-aging, the
Group had entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire a
medical beauty anti-aging group in August 2017. The Company believes
that the acquisition is mutually beneficial to the existing Medical Anti-
aging business and the beauty anti-aging group resulting in more
comprehensive and more competitive quality of health services provided
to customers. The relevant business maintained a fast growing pace
during the Year. It is expected that the market environment would be
petter in 2019.

The Group has acquired a parcel of land with land development right in
Luofu Mountain for the construction of a Health Preservation Base. The
project is under progress. The Health Preservation Base is targeted at
the elites. It will provide integrated health preservation services such as
Chinese medical health preservation, sleeping health preservation, and
diet health preservation. Relevant health preservation properties are
expected to be available for lease or for sale.

During the Year, revenue from Medical Anti-aging and Health
Preservation Base amounted to approximately HK$108,132,000 (2017:
HK$63,622,000), which represented an increase of approximately
HK$44,510,000 compared to 2017. The increase was mainly attributable
to the medical beauty anti-aging group acquired last year.

(Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Health Industry (Continued)
Medical and Healthcare Industry Investment Management

The Group focuses on the development of Life Healthcare Industry and
adjusts for its composition of businesses from time to time in order
to develop its core businesses. The Group would also divest certain
investments to take profit and to enhance the Group’s income from
time to time. Investment projects currently held by the Group includes
JP Partners Medical Group, Fengshuo Bio Medical Tech Group and
Aidigong Maternity Health Group. JP Partners Medical Group comprises
eighteen private medical centres in Hong Kong. Fengshuo Bio Medical
Tech Group is principally engaged in the research of the dioscorea
composita root extract technology’s commercial applications and
production. Aidigong Materity Health Group is mainly engaged in the
operation of maternity health centres and the provision of material health
services. Aidigong Maternity Health Group has established maternity
health centres in Shenzhen Xiangmihu Resort, Shenzhen Yinhu,
Shenzhen Nanshan, Chengdu and Beijing.

During the Year, revenue from medical and healthcare industry
investment management amounted to approximately HK$6,843,000
(2017: HK$63,558,000), which represented a decrease of approximately
HK$56,715,000 as compared to 2017.

The Group will gradually reduce the development on this business as
the industry chain of such business requires the Group to operate a
health-related and medical-related products trading business, which will
develop in stages while such business volume was historically unstable
with a lower gross profit margin.

Natural Health Food Business

Trading of grain and oil is main business of the Group’s natural
health food segment. It has been shown a drop in revenue. The
Group’s decrease in revenue which has generated approximately
HK$323,856,000 in 2017 and decreased to approximately
HK$249,795,000 in 2018. Although the Group and its customer have
sustainable relationship, the gross profit margin of grain and oil trading
is low and sales are susceptible to market fluctuations. The Group will
adjust the prospective business development of the respective segment
in a timely manner according to market conditions.

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment and Finance

During the Year, revenue from the Group’s investment and finance
segment amounted to approximately HK$12,265,000 (2017:
HK$23,897,000), which represented a decrease of HK$11,632,000 as
compared to 2017. As a result of decrease in loan amount lent out during
the Year, the performance of this segment had deteriorated during the
Year from segment loss of approximately HK$21,398,000 in 2017 to a
segment loss of approximately HK$31,788,000 in 2018.

Among the revenue, interest income amounting to approximately
HK$7,819,000 (2017: HK$16,684,000) was generated from the loan
of Champion Dynasty Limited (“Champion Dynasty”) and interest
income from the money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$4,446,000 (2017: HK$7,213,000). The revenue decrease of this
segment was mainly due to the decrease in outstanding principal loan
amount to Champion Dynasty during the Year as compared to 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net asset value

As at 31 December 2018, total net assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$962,227,000 (2017: HK$978,211,000), representing
a decrease of HK$15,984,000, as compared to 2017. The decrease was
mainly due to the net effect of (i) exchange loss on translating foreign
operations arising during the Year of HK$27,317,000; (i) profit for the
Year of HK$11,108,000, and (iiij change in value of equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$2,067,000.

As at 31 December 2018, net asset value per issued ordinary shares of
the Company was HK$0.32 (2017: HK$0.33).

The current ratio (calculate as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.35 (2017: 1.05 (Restated)).
Equity

The number of issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018 was 2,996,255,008 (2017: 2,996,255,008).

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has a principal amount of
US$8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$62,400,000) (31
December 2017: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,500,000)) secured convertible notes, HK$107,800,000 (31
December 2017: HK$121,600,000) unsecured bonds, HK$80,000,000
(31 December 2017: HK$100,000,000) secured guaranteed notes and
approximately HK$16,138,000 (31 December 2017: HK$12,204,000)
bank and other borrowings.

Save for disclosed above, the Group did not have any other borrowing as
at 31 December 2018.

HK$1,000,000, 9% interest bearing, unsecured convertible bond issued
to Changjiang Asset Management (HK) Limited

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 24
December 2015, 11 January 2016 and 10 January 2018 in relation
to, among other things, convertible bond issued by the Company in a
principal amount of HK$1,000,000. During the Year, such unsecured
convertible bond was redeemed in full at the redemption price (together
with accrued and unpaid interest thereon) of HK$1,090,000 on its date
of maturity, and following the redemption, the convertible bond was
cancelled.

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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NAGEMENT DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

HK$100,000,000, 11% interest bearing, secured and guaranteed note
(the “WT Note”) issued to Wan Tai Investments Limited (“Wan Tai”)

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 14
December 2016, 21 December 2016 and 15 August 2018 regarding,
among other things, the WT Note issued by the Company in a principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 to Wan Tai, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited. The WT Note was
issued to Wan Tai on 21 December 2016 and it was matured on 15
August 2018 according to the terms of the WT Note. Wan Tai had given
confirmation that the Company is not required to redeem the WT Note
on the existing maturity date and did not constitute for any breach of the
terms of the WT Note committed by the Company in connection with
the expiry of the existing maturity date of the WT Note. In December
2018, HK$20,000,000 WT Note was redeemed and HK$80,000,000
WT Note was outstanding as at 31 December 2018. Subsequent to the
Year, HK$10,000,000 WT Note was redeemed and HK$70,000,000 was
outstanding up to the date of this report.

US$10,000,000, 9% interest bearing convertible bond (the “Great Wall
CB’) issued to China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Co., Ltd.
(BT =35 & 2 (BIRR )13 R 5 R 2 7)) (“Great Wall”)

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 5 August
2016, 16 August 2016 and 15 August 2018 regarding, among other
things, the Great Wall CB issued by the Company in a principal amount
of US$10,000,000 to Great Wall. The Great Wall CB was issued to
Great Wall on 15 August 2016 and it was matured on 15 August 2018
according to the terms of the Great Wall CB. Great Wall had given
confirmation that the Company is not required to redeem the Great
Wall CB on the existing maturity date and it did not constitute for any
breach of the terms of the Great Wall CB committed by the Company
in connection with the expiry of the existing maturity date. In December
2018, US$2,000,000 Great Wall CB was redeemed and US$8,000,000
Great Wall CB was outstanding as at 31 December 2018. Subsequent
to the Year, US$1,000,000 Great Wall CB was redeemed and
US$7,000,000 was outstanding up to the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The Company is still negotiating the terms of extension of the WT Note
and the Great Wall CB with the respective parties, and the Company
will comply with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
as required. The Company will keep its shareholders and the investing
public updated of any development of the WT Note and the Great Wall
CB as and when appropriate.

The Group maintains sufficient working capital and cash position for daily
operations. Bank and cash balances as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$8,016,000 (31 December 2017: HK$67,038,000).
The low cash balance is due to the partial repayment of the secured
convertible notes and the secured guaranteed notes in December 2018.

The cash and bank balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United State dollar and the bank borrowings facilities available
to the Group were denominated in Renminbi and bear floating interest
rates. The Group continued to have no structured investment products,
foreign exchange contracts and investment in listed shares, bonds and
debentures. The Group is not exposed to material fluctuations risks in
exchange rates.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the entire issued share capital of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Common Splendor Hong Kong
Investment Fund Management Limited (“CSHK Investment Fund
Management”), was charged to China Great Wall AMC (International)
Holdings Co., Limited as a security for convertible notes issued by
the Company in the principal amount of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,400,000). As at 31 December 2018, total assets
of CSHK Investment Fund Management and its subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$308,064,000 (31 December 2017: HK$312,037,000).
As at 31 December 2018, the entire issued capital of two wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Harvest Luck Investment Limited
(“Harvest Luck”) and Great King Limited (“Great King”) were charged
to Wan Tai Investments Limited, an indirect wholly-owned company of
CCB International (Holdings) Limited, as a security for guaranteed notes
issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$80,000,000. As
at 31 December 2018, total assets of Harvest Luck, Great King and their
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$448,267,000 (31 December
2017: HK$460,488,000). Save as disclosed above, no asset was
pledged by the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

MBEEE @)

RBESRBBEER@E)

ARREERBAS TERAEREREERE
WAIMBESRZFY  MARRKBREERE
SETRAUMNERBRE - ARAHKNEE KR
MERREARREEENMEARZERERA
BREFZEMER -

AEE®RFREALBEEARRESRRIEAEE
Bo-R_Z—N\F+_A=+—HZRITER
S HEHHA8,016,000B T (- BE—+LF+ =
A=+—H8 :67,038,000/7T) - RE &R
K DHR-_Z—NFE+_AEELH» R
AHRBREERERIPEERER -
RERBITEHRUARE - BT RETLE

MAKREAANRITEEREAAREFEL

REFBHNEAR - AEBKRAREEBILERE
Em  MESHAR ETRD BEFkERS
%ﬁﬁ ° ZK%K@EEEEXE@/BZ@JH R

& E

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 ARa2EH
BAAREREREEASEREARAA(IRA

EEAEREEZESERE]) 22MEHRITRAE
R rTBEREEE(BR)ERARAAE
R R TF (TR L 8,000,000 T (HFR
#162,400,0008 ) TR EHE W EFY o

RZFE-NF+-_A=+—H RAEFER

BESEBENHEWB AN ZEEREN A
308,064,000 c(ZE—+F+-_A=+—
H : 312,037,000/ 7T ) ° EA:;—)\¢+—

A=+—H AR MHEZzEMNB QR H K
BEERAR(ER]DEERTERAD T(f%
WZ2EREBTRACHCLERBEER(IZ
BI)ERAANEEZ2ERARBREEER
A ERARAAEEITASE A80,000,000%
TEREENERY R —N\F+ A
=+ —H TR EBHLREMNBRARCZEE
BEAHLY E448,267,0008 T( = —+F

+=-—A=4+—H : 460,488,000/ 7T) ° K& I
XHHEEEN  AEEBR_ZE—N\F+_A

—t—-HkZZE-—
EEA o

+FE+_A=+—-—HBIEZE

12 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



-

IANAGEMENT
B o i B2 4 b (#)

3

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Remuneration policies and share option scheme

It is the Group’s policy to recruit the right person for each position based
on the person’s qualification and experience. The remuneration of each
employee is reviewed every year based on the performance of the
employee with reference to the prevailing market conditions. During the
Year, total staff costs excluding Directors’ emolument was approximately
HK$14,972,000 (2017: HK$12,468,000).

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 October 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
option scheme (“2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2012
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to Eligible
Participants (as defined in the 2012 Share Option Scheme) of the 2012
Share Option Scheme for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of the Group. The Eligible Participants include
any employees of the Group (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries) and any customer, supplier, service provider,
shareholder, adviser or consultant and any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from the commencement date. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was granted pursuant
to the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2018, no share
option was outstanding (31 December 2017: Nil).

The Board has approved the adoption of a share award scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 5 July 2018 and it was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 30 August
2018. The purposes and objectives of the Scheme are to recognise
the contributions by certain employee, director, officer, consultant or
adviser of the Group and to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group, and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group. For the
period from 30 August 2018 to 31 December 2018, no share award was
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2018, the total capital commitment of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,768,000) (2017: RMB20,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,615,000)) which is related to the construction of
the Luofu Mountain Project.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group has no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary during the
Year.

Other Information

Profit guarantee in respect of the Group’s medical beauty anti-aging
business

Reference is made to the announcement of 3 January 2019, the profit
target of Golden Time Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries (the “GTV
Group”) for the twelve-month period ended 31 October 2018 under the
sale and purchase agreement dated 12 August 2017 has been fulfilled.
Accordingly, the first tranche consideration shares issued to several
vendors in October 2017, being 290,000,000 Shares, in aggregate, are
no longer subject to the relevant lock-up undertaking.

(Continued)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
(Continued)

Other Information (Continued)

The remaining consideration shares, being 90,000,000 Shares,
in aggregate, shall remain to be subject to the respective lock-up
undertaking from each relevant vendor pending fulfilment of the relevant
profit target of GTV Group.

Profit and technical guarantee of an associate

Reference is made to the announcements dated 23 November 2015, 28
March 2018. 6 September 2018, 30 November 2018 and 19 December
2018, the guarantee technical requirement of Guangdong Fengyuan
Huake Bio Tech Company Limited (“Guangdong Fengyuan”) has been
achieved. However, the guarantee profit of RMB38 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 had not been met.

On 30 November 2018, among other parties, the Group and Guangdong
Fengyuan Technology Innovation Bio Tech Company Limited* (B3R
LREIA AR AR AT (the “Vendor”), Guangdong Fengyuan
and Fengshuo Bio Medical Tech Company Limited entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”). According to
the Supplemental Agreement, the Vendor has agreed to compensate
the Group in the amount of RMB5.69 million. Under the Supplemental
Agreement, the guarantee net profit of Guangdong Fengyuan for the
years ending 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020 will not be less than RMB20 million, RMB20 million and RMB38
million respectively. In the event that the guarantee net profits are not
achieved, the Vendor shall transfer a percentage of the equity interest
in Guangdong Fengyuan held by the Vendor to the Group at no further
consideration based on the relevant formula. Please refer to the
Company’s announcements stated in the paragraph above.

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (

Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
LR f s

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
business of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year, which forms part of this
directors’ report, is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 6 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of investments in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal business are set out in notes 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 December 2018 are set out in notes 49, 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 106
of this report.

The Board does not recommend any payments of final dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects would be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
including business risks, operational risks, manpower and retention risks
and financial risks. The Group’s key risk exposures are summarised as

follows:

Business risks

Operational risks

Manpower and
retention risks

Compliance
risks

Financial risks

Performance of the Group’s core business will
be affected by various factors, including but not
limited to economic conditions, performance of the
healthcare market, performance of our investments
held. The Group proactively monitors industry
trends, technology innovations and responsive to
changes in consumer behaviour.

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard
operating procedures, limits of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify
and assess key operational exposures regularly so
that appropriate risk response can be taken.

The Group may face the risk of not being able
to attract and retain key personnel and talents
with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable
candidates and personnel.

The risk of loss resulting from breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The Group engages a legal advisory firm to provide
relevant legal advice and compliance reviews on the
Group’s documentations and publications.

(i) foreign currency risk

(ii) interest rate risk

(iii) credit risk

Details of the financial risk management are set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
GROUP’S BUSINESS (Continued)

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

For procedures and information of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system, please refer to the section headed
“RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” in the Corporate
Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability.
Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled
paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings
and electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction and energy saving.
The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move towards adhering
the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance environmental
sustainability.

For details, please refer to Environmental, Social and Governance Report
in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group. During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
P W ()

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
(Continued)

As a listed company in Hong Kong, the shares of the Company are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Company continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) including the disclosure
requirements, corporate governance provisions and Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the “SFO”), the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to the
disclosure requirement of inside information. The Board will monitor the
Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years is set out on pages 259 to 260 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in the share capital and share options of the Company during
the Year are set out in notes 32 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
page 110 of this report.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), was HK$105,887,000 (2017:
HK$107,549,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of Company’s
shares.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
oA ()

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) and the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements,
there is no other significant events occurred after the reporting date and
up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (“Mr. Cheung”) (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (“Mr. Cheng”) (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (“Mr. Ye”) (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Kai Wen (“Mr. Hou”)
Mr. Lin Jiang (“Mr. Lin”)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Wing (“Mr. Lam”)
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (“Mr. Mai”)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (“Mr. Wong”)

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Ye, Mr. Lin and Mr. Mai will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as an
executive Director, a non-executive Director and an independent non-
executive director.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
o ()

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company, underlying shares of the Company and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) or pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered

EERBESTBRAERAQTRME
BEE R SER

RZFE-NE+-_A=+—H EFRARA
RRITERABRARARNL - AR A HERD
ERARBREBABEE(EERBSF P E K
BIEXVED) 2 BEHEEF  BERBEFLBE

R 55 352 6k 78 50 A AN X B P 5 77 B9 B AT 111 B9

into the register maintained by the Company, or otherwise required to  fE25 R A A -+ sk iR 1B 42 % <F BI| /8 40 € B 22 AT &7
notify the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows: kAWM T :
Number of shares
RO & A
Ordinary Underlying Percentage
Name of shares of the shares of the of issued
Directors Company Company Total Capacity Notes share capital
NN PN HE BT
EERE ZER HER 5 By 54 i  BRABIH

Mr. Cheung 930,379,671 = 930,379,671 (L) Interest of controlled corporation 1 31.05%
SRS REGEE R
Mr. Cheng 4,300,000 - 4,300,000 (L) Beneficial owner/Interest of 2 0.14%
spouse
85 A EnEAAN/TBEER
Remark: EEr
The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares of the Company. FRLIERKRNGIRGFEIFE
Notes: Hrat -
(1) Mr. Cheung, through his controlled corporation, Champion Dynasty is deemed (1) RAELEBBHAZFE LB Champion Dynasty# 1R
to be interested in 930,379,671 shares of the Company held by Champion A& Champion Dynasty$# & #930,379,67 1%
Dynasty. AARIBRGPERESR -

) Mr. Cheng owned 4,000,000 Shares and his spouse, being a staff of a subsidiary
of the Company, owned 300,000 Shares. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Cheng
was deemed to be interested in same parcel of Shares which his spouse was
interested.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company, nor their associates, had
or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the shares of
the Company, underlying shares of the Company or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), that was required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(2) BB AEHA4,000,0000% 10 MEEB(AARAF
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following party (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) was recorded in the register kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Number of
Name of substantial ordinary shares of
Shareholder the Company Capacity
ARBAEBR
TERRER IR 4 & B )

TERRREQB 2R ZER

BEEERARAKSTRABMAE K=
Z-N\F+ZA=+—H ARABRBEFK
HIERPIFIHABFZECMAERHLS
ﬁ%ﬂ‘\$ A BERAHERREARERER
$ATE%’*‘TTHx$5%‘JZLALZ$§E*ﬁZ}\i(§
ERARAZSTHRABRINGAT ¢

N

:E 4

\

Percentage of
issued share

Notes capital
HE &7
M &t RAB D

Champion Dynasty 930,379,671 (L) Beneficial owner 1 31.05%
EmEA A
Beauty Sunrise Investment 300,000,000 (L) Beneficial owner 2 10.01%
Limited
EnEAA
Remark: #it -

The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares of the Company.
Notes:

(1) Mr. Cheung is the sole director of Champion Dynasty and owned its entire issued
capital.

2) According to the relevant Disclosure of Interest Notice (“DI Notice”) in connection
with the Company available on www.hkex.com.hk as at 31 December 2018,
Beauty Sunrise Investment Limited is a company wholly owned by Ms. Zhang
Wenli.

All the interests stated above represent long position which included
interests in shares of the Company and underlying shares of the
Company. Save for disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company, underlying shares or bonds of the Company
or its associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein.
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Investment Limited® —HBKRXFZ T2 EH
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
EHG A (H)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, none of the Directors was interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or its holding company’s subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” below,
no Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the business of the Group or to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company and the
subsidiaries of its parent company was a party during or at the end of the
Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” below,
no controlling Shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for the
provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 27 September 2012, the Company, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with Champion Dynasty, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as an individual guarantor,
and Guangdong Allad Commercial Development Company Limited*
(BEREBIBEMERRAR AT (formerly known as Guangdong Allad
Yiliao Touzi Company Limited* (ERRBIEEEZIEEFRAF)), as a
corporate guarantor, to grant a three-year revolving loan facility of up to
HK$220,000,000 to Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of HIBOR plus
2.5% per annum (the “Loan Agreement”). The loan facility was approved
by the independent Shareholders at the special general meeting held on
20 November 2012. The loan was repayable on demand.

EENBFEXRB o ER

AEE BEEFERASEXFERURE
BRBEFLAEBRBEF2EMERBPEAE

Nz
S o

T

BERONEEE 2L 5

ARwE - EMBAR - HEBRARKEZERR
AzHBRRMERAFREAEL LTS - AE
EXARBARNRASEMEMEARE 2K
D REHEEMES N -

EEREARS  ZHIEHOHE
#®

BRTXHEREXS IMBREESN  BEES
SEMEEFTARMNERRENBEETHY
AEBEXKMSBEKR AR IEAEMMN
BAA HBRAMBAGAMBATRRAKEE
ARAFERERBITNTNRS - ZHERAHF
EERREEAEEAES -

ERRRREREANESR

BRTIXFHEREXS IMBEESN  BEER
BRIEMBARDEEAEAEEXEMN S B
EREARRAREEAMBRAARAFEAR
AHRTMEH (TR AREREHEMEL) P
ERUHERBEREERES -

KEREXS

RZE——FhLA=-+tB A28 (EAEE
) BRI E 2R R B Champion Dynasty
(EREA)RKREE(EABEAERA)RE
RREENEEREAERAG(FIBAERRERE
EEEREAERAR) (ERAARERA)RZL
— 1 E W% 0 MChampion Dynastyigft—
% 5 %220,000,000B T2 = FHERER
ME - FHNERAFBRITAEIREEN2.52
([ExHmz])  ZEXBEECRZ-_ZTE—ZF
+—AZTHRTZBREFIRAENE B LR
RBitE - ZERERBEREBHEE -

AAEREEELERERAT —T e L)



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 2 October 2015, the Company, as lender, entered into a new facility
agreement and agreed to renew the Loan Agreement with Champion
Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as individual guarantor, for a
period of three years from 20 November 2015 to 19 November 2018 in
relation to a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000
to Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of 10% per annum (the
“First Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction”). The First Renewed
Shareholder Loan Transaction was approved by the independent
Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 19 November 2015.
The loan is repayable on demand.

On 5 October 2018, the Company, as lender, entered into a new facility
agreement and agreed to renew the Loan Agreement with Champion
Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as individual guarantor, for a
period of three years from 19 November 2018 to 18 November 2021 in
relation to a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000
to Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of 10% per annum (the “Second
Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction”, together with the First
Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction, the “Loan Transactions”). The
Second Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction was approved by the
independent Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 19
November 2018. The loan is repayable on demand.

Having reviewed the Loan Transactions, the INED, pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry out annual
review on all continuing connected transactions, other than fully exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules (if any),
confirmed that the Loan Transactions was made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, was made on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing on terms that
was fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor (the “Independent Auditor”) were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). The Independent Auditor had issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the Independent Auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Auditor
confirmed that the Loan Transactions:

(i) had received the approvals of the Board;

(i) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Loan Transactions; and

(i) had not exceeded the respective caps disclosed in the previous
circulars of the Company dated 2 November 2015 and 5 November
2018.

Save for mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Material related party transactions, including the said continuing
connected transaction, entered into by the Group for the Year are
disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. Saved for
disclosed above, none of such transactions constituted a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as and where applicable and
relevant during the Year.

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 46
to the consolidated financial statements which constituted continuing
connected transactions, the Company had complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had around 200 employees
excluding Directors (2017: around 270). The total staff cost excluding
Directors’ emoluments was approximately HK$14,972,000 (2017:
HK$12,468,000) during the Year. The Remuneration Committee was set
up for reviewing the Group’s overall emolument policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of
the Directors and senior management and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

Remuneration package comprised salaries and year ended bonuses
based on individual merits. The Company adopted a share option
scheme on 11 October 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). During the Year, no
share option was granted and no share option was outstanding as at 31
December 2018. The company adopted a share award scheme on 30
August 2018 (the “2018 Scheme”). During the year, no share award was
granted. Details of the 2012 Scheme and the 2018 Scheme are set out
in notes 37 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates the provident fund scheme as defined in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws
of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) for the Year. The MPF Scheme is
defined contribution scheme and the assets of the scheme are managed
by its trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to below 65 and
with at least 60 days of continuous service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5%
based on the staff’s relevant income. The statutory maximum level of
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$30,000 per month. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group’s contributions together with
accrued returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but
the benefit is required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of
65.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Particulars of contribution to the retirement benefit scheme for the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the Bye-laws, among others, the Directors, acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to indemnified and
secured harmless out of assets and profits of the Company from and
against all, among others, actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain. The
Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover the
certain legal actions brought against the Directors and officers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 5 August 2016, convertible notes of US$10 million (“USD Convertible
Notes”) were issued by the Company. Upon exercise in full of the
subscription rights attaching to the USD Convertible Notes at the
conversion price of HK$0.70 (subject to adjustment), a maximum of
110,714,285 ordinary shares of the Company will be issued, which no
shares of the Company has been issued as at the date of this report
under the USD Convertible Notes. The conversion rights under the USD
Convertible Notes shall be exercisable during the conversion period
commencing on the date of the USD Convertible Notes and ending on
180 days prior to the maturity date of the USD Convertible Notes. The
net proceeds from the issue of the USD Convertible Notes amounts to
HK$77,000,000. Details of which have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 August 2016 and 16 August 2016. In December
2018, USD Convertible Notes amounted to US$2 million was redeemed
and US$8 million Convertible Notes was outstanding as at 31 December
2018. Subsequent to the Year, US$1,000,000 USD Convertible Notes
was redeemed and US$7,000,000 was outstanding up to the date of this
report.

The convertible bonds were issued to the subscriber on 15 August 2016.
In accordance with the terms of the convertible bonds, the convertible
bonds would mature on 15 August 2018. The Company is currently
negotiating the terms of extension of the convertible bond with the
subscriber. In addition, the subscriber had given confirmation that the
Company is not required to redeem the convertible bonds on the existing
maturity date and does not constitute for any breach of the terms of the
convertible bonds committed by the Company in connection with the
expiry of the existing maturity date.

The Group came across and negotiated investment opportunities related
to the healthcare industry with potential mergers and acquisitions, while
proactively raising fund necessary for the negotiation and identification
of new investment opportunities, such proceeds may be applied to
potential new investment opportunities and general working capital of
the Group and for the development of existing healthcare business of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
oA ()

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted for approximately 6% (2017: 14%) and
22% (2017: 33%) respectively, of the Group’s total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 17% (2017: 13%) and
62% (2017: 51%) respectively, of the Group’s total purchases for the
Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had beneficial interests in any of the Group’s
five largest customers and five largest suppliers during the Year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and Shareholders. Employees are regarded as the most
important and valuable assets of the Group. The Group maintains a
good relationship with its employees and did not experience any major
difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience any material loss in
manpower or suffer from any material labour dispute during the Year.
The Group also understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its short-term
and long-term goals. It enjoys good relationships with suppliers and
customers and strives to take an active part in the communities where
they operate.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company had maintained the prescribed
amount of public float during the Year and up to the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

EEAH

AEEMETYXTFEERARABREHEM
EEROEFLNERERITRAR °

TEEFRHER

AEBEGAEFRARBEE 2EEBED L
EAREBMAFELSEBLE 6% (T —+HF
14%) %222%(=ZFE—+4% : 33%) ©

AREBGAEEELAARER ZRBELRE
DRAEAREBAFEERBEARBZ17T%(ZZ
—+F 183%)R62%(ZF—+F : 51%) o

B WNEZETHEARNTABRR(BES
FRABEEARRRCBITRNEBS%E)BMERE
FEHREAREEMNAREFPRAARHERZ

28 2 -

HIZHENENERE

AEEORDMTARIBEROENXSE B85
BT  -BF  #HER EERBERER-BT
BERAEEZEENEBENEE - AFE

BEEIMEARNE  TEEBINCTMERNEER
REEMEREEMD - REEBTBARER
HEMEAEHESEMEEAHERREFARR
HHRRZERNE HEHEBREFREFRYT
E TR EGE2EARFLEMELR A
) o

ABEFRE

REARARDFAEEABZENREESER
ABETEMFRERATEYMAA - AQF]
REAFEARBEARETNENNRRERA
THHERLETRAUREAFTEEEEZAR

FERE -

28 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
o ()

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment
of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the Independent Auditors
for the subsequent year will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2018 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. There has been no other change in the
Independent Auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited

Cheung Wai Kuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o 5 B B P 1]

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen, aged 45, joined the Company as executive
Director in August 2012 and has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) in September 2012. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has established a number
of enterprises in various industries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) since 1997, including property investment, hospital and
trading business. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of experience in capital
management and corporate management. He was appointed as an
executive director of L’sea Resources International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 195) on 4 December 2009. Mr. Cheung is a director of
Champion Dynasty, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan, aged 72, joined the Company as executive Director
in August 2012 and has been appointed as the deputy chairman of the
Board (the “Deputy Chairman”) since September 2012. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He was the deputy division
chief of the Finance and Planning Division of Yunnan Provincial Geology
and Mining Bureau from October 1984 to March 1986, and deputy
director of the Economic Commission of Kunming for the period from
April 1986 to April 1988. From May 1988 to 1996, he was the president
of the Yunnan Branch of Bank of Communications. Mr. Cheng was an
executive director of Yunnan Enterprises Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
455) from April 1998 to March 2006, and west China regional director
of the Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 127) from 2006
to 2010. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
L’sea Resources International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 195) on 23
December 2009 and re-designated as executive director from December
2010 to September 2012. Mr. Cheng obtained a master of Business
Administration degree from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1983.

Mr. Ye Jiong Xian, aged 54, joined the Company as executive Director
in December 2015 and has been appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEQ”) since December 2015. Mr. Ye is a
chief surgeon, professor, doctor in management studies and doctoral
advisor. He has over 30 years of experience in the fields of clinical
medicine, teaching, scientific research and management. He once
severed as senior executives in a number of top class Grade A hospitals.
Mr. Ye also held administrative positions with health care authorities
for a number of years where he led the preparation work for setting up
large general hospitals and won great awards in China. He was once
sent to international universities such as the Harvard University to study
where he accumulated rich experience in health care management.
Mr. Ye is currently the executive member of Logistics Management
Special Committee under the Chinese Hospital Association* (A B &
ireERZYTEEEZESEHE H), the executive director of
the Hospital Architecture System Research Branch under the Chinese
Hospital Association* (Bl &t i & Bt L ZRM R D 2 FHESE),
the editorial board member of the book titled Architecture and Equipment
of Chinese Hospitals* ({F BIE&PT 2L HEE {5 )) and the chief editor of
the books titled Practices in Setting up Hospitals* (( Bt £ E )) and
Norms for Etiquette of Medical Workers* ((E&75 A B1& &R ED)).
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

O Ko R B A (A

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Jiang, aged 54, joined the Company as non-executive
Director of the Company in February 2013. Mr. Lin has over 20 years
of experience in economic and financial sectors. He has earned both
a Bachelor’s degree and a Master’s degree in Economics from Sun
Yat-sen University, along with a Doctor’s degree from Jinan University
in Economics, and completed his postdoctoral research on Applied
Economics in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. Mr. Lin is
currently a Deputy Director, Research Center of Hong Kong Macau and
the Pearl River Delta, Sun Yat-sen University, as well as an Economics
professor in Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen University. Moreover, he
serves as an instructional committee member of Public Financial Class
of High Education Institute of the Ministry of National Education* (B
RYEFELRVHREBEHNEBIEEEET), a part-time researcher
for Cross-Strait Research Center* (&K Z=IZTH L FRBATEE), an
advisory member of Guangzhou Municipal Financial Experts Committee*
(BT BMERZEHRNEE ), a specialist researcher of the Taiwan
Affairs Offices of the People’s Government of Guangdong Province
and Guangdong Taiwan Research Centre* (BHRA ARBIF & &S
PAEFERAEITH L), strategic expert of Guangzhou People’s
Government, 4th session (BN ARBUTEEERKZEAER) and a
consultation expert of the Budget Committee of Guangzhou Municipal
People’s Congress, 15th session. In addition, He was then the deputy
general manager for the financial division of China Merchant Group
Limited.

Mr. Hou Kai Wen, aged 32, joined the Company as non-executive
Director on 5 June 2017. Mr. Hou obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration and Mathematics from Aston University in
Birmingham, the United Kingdom in 2010. Subsequently, Mr. Hou
obtained a Master’s degree in International Accounting & Finance from
London Cass Business School, City University in 2011. Mr. Hou joined
the Banking Division of Guosen Securities Investment in May 2012,
and he was principally responsible for initial public offering and capital
markets related matters. He was involved in a number of healthcare
and medical care related initial public offerings in the past. On February
2016, Mr. Hou joined China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Co.,
Ltd as a vice president, and since then, he was mainly responsible for
investments in healthcare related businesses.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

O Ko AR B A (4

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mai Yang Guang, aged 54, joined the Company as INED in
February 2013. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company, the chairman of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company and a member of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
of the Company. Mr. Mai has over 20 years of experience in enterprise
management in the PRC. He graduated from Thermal Engineering
Department of Northeastern University in the PRC. Mr. Mai is the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Xinyinji Enterprise
Development Limited* (RYIT¥EEFTEERER A F]) and the
chairman of board of directors and general manager of Shenzhen
Haojiahua Investment Limited* (R iF s ERE B R A 7).

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 51, joined the Company as INED in
September 2017. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wong has over 25 years of experience in venture capital,
corporate finance, business development and general management.
He served as the president and group chief financial officer of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB”) and as the executive director, the
chief financial officer and the company secretary of KVB’s subsidiary,
KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 6877). Mr. Wong also served as an
independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3628), HongDa Financial Holding Ltd (Stock Code:
1822), Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1581),
China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code: 8158),
each of the shares of such companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong also served several positions at Adamas Finance Asia Limited,
a company listed on the London Stock Exchange (LSE Stock Code:
ADAM), including its executive director from May 2008 to February
2014, its chief financial officer from May 2008 to October 2011 and its
non-executive director since February 2014. Mr. Wong also served as
an independent non-executive director of Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 1355) from November
2016 to September 2018.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

O Ko R B A (A

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong, a master’s degree of science in
investment management from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and a master’s degree of science in electronic engineering
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was admitted as
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He was admitted as a
chartered financial analyst of the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts.
He is a current member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He is
also acting the deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation, the court
member of The University of Hong Kong, and a committee member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam Chi Wing, aged 39, joined the Company as INED in March
2016. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. Mr. Lam obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accounting & Finance at
the University of Hong Kong in 2003. Subsequently, Mr. Lam obtained a
Master of Science degree in Knowledge Management at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006 and a Master of Business Administration
degree at the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Lam
is currently a doctoral candidate in Global Creative Industries of the
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam served at PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2003. Mr. Lam
subsequently joined Li & Fung Group, which he served as Group Chief
Representative and General Manager, Southern China of Li & Fung
Development (China) Limited prior to his departure. Mr. Lam currently
serves as director or consultant at a number of companies in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Lam is a member of the Twelfth Guangdong Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (Ff B A REA
HEeHFE T _EEEREZE), and the Eleventh & Twelfth Zhongshan
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference*
FRARBUAHEEZZET—/E - +=EHRILTZEE), a member of the
Committee of the Chinese Association of Hong Kong & Macao Studies*
(EEERTITE B R B R), a member of the Expert Committee to
the Second Ministry of Commerce Advisory Committee for Economic
& Trade Policy* (£ ZEBIREE LB BERAZAZEEER), a deputy
committee of the Zhongshan Public Diplomacy Association* (4 L1722
HAINZHE), a deputy director of the Hong Kong Guangdong Youth
Association* (BB B R T g), Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Zhongshan Youth Association* (& # & LI & F #% & ), a member of
The Hong Kong Professionals And Senior Executives Association (&
BEERERITHRAER Tf?% ), a member of The Y. Elites Association
Limited (& /& & & & iX &) and a member of the Chinese Academy
of Governance (HK) Industrial and Commercial Professionals Alumni
Association Limited* (FEIBRITHER (FE) IHEXRESK8).
Mr. Lam served as a part-time member of the Central Policy Unit of the
Government of Hong Kong from 2011 to 2012, and is currently serving
as an advisory committee of the Sustainable Agricultural Development
Fund of the Government of Hong Kong, a committee member of
the Appeal Panel (Housing) of the Government of Hong Kong, and a
committee member of China Commerce & Trade Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade and Development Council (&7 & 53 & BN
IJD u/j§ = El)

Mr. Lam is currently the Vice Chairman of the Youth Division of China
Commerce & Economy Society* (1 Bl 2485 Eg), Vice Chairman of
the Guangdong Society of Commercial Economy* (/& 5 & ) ¥ &85 2
@), Deputy Dean of the Guangdong Asia Pacific E-Commerce Institute*
(BH 5N EF 5 5B), Deputy Secretary-General of the Society
of Guangdong Logistics and Supply Chain* (ER& ¥ nEftEEes
@), Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Cross-Border E-Commerce
Association (BB RE T REEHE).

Mr. Lam is currently an Adjunct Professor at the Renmin University of
China School of Business (f B A RAKZmEPT), a research fellow
at each of the China Business Model Research Centre of the China
Financial Research Institute at Tsinghua University School of Economics
& Management* (BEAXBLEBRAPEESBARFR O EENHE
TEZ), Sun Yat-sen University’s Centre for Information Economy and
Policy* ({F IR E AR BB 7T L), Guangdong University of
Finance and Economics’ Research Institute of Circulation Economy*
(BRI RERBEEMITA, Jinan University’s Modern Distribution
Research Centre* (B AEZ2H A RBHIF L) and Shenzhen
University’s Center for Basic Laws of Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administrative Regions* (RIIIA B E AL A L),

Mr. Lam has served as an independent non-executive director of Wai
Hung Group Holdings Limited since March 2019, a company in which the
shares are scheduled to be listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong on 23 April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

O Ko R B A (A

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various aspects of the business and operations of the Group are
respectively under direct responsibilities of the executive Directors who
are regarded as the senior management of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wing Cheung, joined the Group in September 2017 and
was appointed as the financial controller of the Group, the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and the authorized representative
of the Company in December 2017. Mr. Wong is a practising member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 13 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2005. He worked in several audit firms during 2006
to 2015. He also provides consultancy service on financial and internal
control of several companies including listed companies. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Wong worked for China Beidahuang Industry Group
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 00039) as a group finance manager.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no change to any of the
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for the
Year.
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OBJECTIVE

The Board together with the Group is committed to maintain high
standards of corporate governance so as to ensure high transparency
and protection of the Shareholders’ interests in general. The Board
endeavours to ensure effective self-regulatory practices, to maintain
sound internal control system and to absorb high calibre members to the
Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to
the Shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for directing the Group, formulating overall
strategy, monitoring operational and financial performance of the Group
and overseeing the performance of the management of the Group (the
“Management”). Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of
the Company. The Directors are collectively and individually responsible
to the Company for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated. They had devoted sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s affairs during the Year.

Structure

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three INEDs. The INEDs represent more than
one-third of the Board. The members of the Board during the year and as
at the date of this report as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEO)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Kai Wen
Mr. Lin Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Mai Yang Guang
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Structure (Continued)

The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company’s website.
There is no personal relationship among members of the Board and in
particular, between the Chairman and the CEQ.

At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification as
required by the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

The Directors (including the non-executive Directors and the INEDs) were
appointed for specific terms.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Messers Ye Jiong Xian, Lin
Jiang and Mai Yang Guang will retire from office by rotation, and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the relevant annual general
meetings.

Every Director is therefore subject to retirement by rotation either under
the Bye-laws or voluntarily, and eligible for re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed of
the Group’s businesses, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industries it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance
requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to
carry out their responsibilities from time to time.

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties under common law (which is also generally applicable
to Bermuda where the Company was incorporated) and to comply with
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a
director should follow in the performance of his functions and exercise of
his powers was distributed to the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meetings’ agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board’s meeting is given to all Directors to
provide them with the opportunity to attend the meeting. Board papers
are dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meetings to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and will be
adequately prepared for the meeting. The Management is invited to
attend the meetings to address to the Board members’ queries. This
enables the Board to have pertinent data and insight for reaching a
comprehensive and informed evaluation as part of the Board decision-
making process.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The chairman of the meetings has delegated the responsibility to the
Company Secretary for drawing up and approving the meeting’s agenda
for each Board’s meeting, taking into account of any matter proposed by
each Director for inclusion in the agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored
by the chairman of the meetings who would ensure that sufficient time is
allocated for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda.
Equal opportunities are given to each Director to express his views and
concerns.

Each Director has to declare his interest and to abstain from voting on
any Board resolution in which he or any of his associates has a material
interest pursuant to the Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in
sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board’s
meetings and of the Board committees’ meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on
reasonable notice.

Seven Board meetings were held for the Year. The Company Secretary
and the Management had attended the Board’s meetings to report
matters arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

=
Individual attendance of each Director at the meetings for the Year was K&

as follows:

Directors

E=x

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEO)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hou Kai Wen
Mr. Lin Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Mai Yang Guang
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest

BITES
RIEREE(EE)
WKL (FEE)
RWMBEE(TTRAAE)

FUTES
I XL
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BYFHTES
MEETE
BHrrE
ERAEE

Number of

Board meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
attendance in total)
HE BT
ESEEBNRY
(AHExR)

7/7 (100%)
6/7 (85.7%)
6/7 (85.7%)

7/7 (100%)
7/7 (100%)

7/7 (100%)
7/7 (100%)
7/7 (100%)

/I () COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Number of
general meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
attendance in total)
HE R
BRERRKERE
(AHE=R)

3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)
1/3 (33.3%)

3/3 (100%)
1/3 (33.3%)

3/3 (100%)
1/3 (33.3%)
2/3 (66.7%)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Work Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board’s meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgement on the Company’s strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the leave where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board’s committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; had carried out reviews on matters reported
by the Board’s committees, and had provided adequate checks and
balance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
the Company in general.

During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board’s
meetings, brought independent judgements and given their comments to
the information or reports submitted to the meetings.

Besides holding the Board’s or committees’ meetings, in order to make
timely decision and ensure effective implementation of the Company’s
policies and practices, the Board had also adopted written resolutions
signed by all Directors for making decisions on corporate affairs from
time to time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the Company’s affairs,
the Directors, acting through by the Audit Committee, had reviewed
the adequacy of resources (of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function), qualifications and experience of the Directors, and
their training programmes and budget during the Year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transaction throughout the Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
Chairman and the CEO should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Year, the Chairman of the Board and the CEQO are
separate positions held by Mr. Cheung and Mr. Ye, respectively, with
clear distinction in responsibilities. The segregation is clearly established
and set out in writing to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and CEO’s responsibility
to manage the Group’s businesses.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with defined roles and
terms of reference.

Audit Committee
Structure

The Audit Committee has been established with the role to assist
the Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and the internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Independent Auditor. It acts in an advisory capacity and makes
recommendations to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were revised and adopted by the Board on 29 March 2019
and effective on 1 January 2019.

All the Audit Committee’s members possess diversified industry

experience. The Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Mai Yang Guang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Function

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Independent Auditor, review
and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports (if
applicable) of the Company, and to review any significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them; and

(i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet with the Independent Auditor at least
twice each year. As least 7 days’ notice has to be given prior to any
meeting being held unless all members of Audit Committee unanimously
waive such notice. The Company prepares and delivers an information
memorandum that includes all relevant information about the meetings
to the Audit Committee’s members at least 3 days prior to such
meetings. During the Year, the Audit Committee’s members reviewed the
information memorandum with due care and discussed with the financial
controller of the Group (who is also the Company Secretary) and other
Management (if necessary) during the meetings.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings with the
presence of the Management. Minutes drafted by the Company
Secretary were circulated to the Audit Committee’s members for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting. Executed
minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the minutes
were sent to the Audit Committee’s members for records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meetings for
the Year was as follows:

K&

Members
.

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chairman) ERELEE(EE)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEHRTE
Mr. Mai Yang Guang Bk k&

Work Performed

The works performed by the members of Audit Committee in the Year
were summarised below:

(i) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, and interim
report of 2018;

reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditor in
respect of the audit fee for the Year; the terms of the engagement
letters for the Year; and the nature, scope of audit and reporting
obligations for the Year;

(i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting and controls, internal control
procedures and risk management systems, and the Group’s
internal audit function;

(iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the
progress of compliance of the CG Code;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Company (including those fallen outside Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules and not required to be made public (if any)) and their
financial implication in their capacity as INEDs;
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Number of meetings attended/held
(Percentage of attendance in total)

HE BTEBERB(BAHER)

2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)
2/2 (100%)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Work Performed (Continued)

(vi)  reviewed the overall performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018;

(vii)  reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the staff in accounting and financial reporting function, and the
training programmes and budget; and

(viii)  reported to the Board the works performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year, presented its findings and made recommendations
for the Board’s consideration.

Overall, the Audit Committee was satisfied with the condition of the
Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal
control system, the conduct of the continuing connected transactions
and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff in
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes
and budget.

On 29 March 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s accounts
and the draft consolidated financial statements for the Year.

Nomination Committee
Structure

The Nomination Committee has been established since 1 April 2012
with the role to lead the process and make recommendations for
appointments to the Board, whether as additional appointment or to
fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they arise, in the
light of challenges and opportunities facing by the Company, as well as
business development and requirements of the Company and to take
approved action if within delegated authority. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee were revised and adopted by the Board on
29 March 2019 and effective on 1 January 2019.

The Nomination Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ermest
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Function

); ERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EESETZES (&)

BREZEE (W)
B3 B

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are summarised below:

U

(i

(vi)

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
evaluation of the skills, knowledge, professional experience,
cultural and education background, gender and age of the
Board members) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendation on any proposed change to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individual suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individual nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of INEDs;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and the chief
executive;

to consult the Remuneration Committee about its remuneration
proposals for the candidate to be appointed as a Director; and

to develop and maintain a policy for the nomination of Board
members which includes the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to
identify, select and recommend candidates for directorship, and to
review periodically and disclose in the corporate governance report
annually and the progress made towards achieving the objectives
set out in the policy. The Nomination Committee should ensure that
the selection process is transparent and fair, and that it considers
a board range of candidates who are outside the Board’s circle of
contacts and in accordance with the Company’s diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee would consult the executive Directors about
its proposals on appointment of other Directors and seek internal and
external professional advices if considered necessary.

Conduct of Meetings

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
consider and approve the nomination of the non-executive Directors and
INEDs for the Year.

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meeting for the
Year was as follows:

Members

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEFHEE
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest EIRGE R &

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once each year. At least
7 days’ notice has been given prior to any meeting being held unless all
members of the Nomination Committee unanimously waive such notice.

The Company prepared and delivered meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Nomination Committee’s
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Nomination Committee’s
members for comments within a reasonable time after this meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies
of the minutes were sent to the Nomination Committee’s members for
records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board against
the measurable objectives in accordance with the diversity policy of the
Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. It aims to set
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board of the Company.
To achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
encourages increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing an appropriate composition
of the Board, the diversity of the Board has been considered from a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. While we recognise that
the gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given its current
composition of all-male Directors, we will continue to apply the principle
of appointments based on merits with reference to our diversity policy as
a whole.

Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and
when they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the
Company, as well as business development and requirements of the
Company. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the Board and/or its committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board’s diversity policy etc. The Nomination Committee
makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the appropriate person
among the candidates nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s)
shall be appointed by the Board in accordance with the Bye-laws and the
Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors participated

the following continuous professional development (CPD) to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills in compliance with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company is responsible for arranging

and finding suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the

roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

=

Directors
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STHRXEA51  MAEZERKZ2EUT
SEEEHRB(CPD)  MEEREHBEEHA
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ZER AR BAEELZHRSHRAERLEE
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Type of training Directors
=R
(See Remarks)

(BfEiE)

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman) REREE(EE) B
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman) BELCSRE(BEE) B
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEO) EWME sk (7THAER) AB
Non-executive Directors FEITES

Mr. Hou Kai Wen B XX kAE B
Mr. Lin Jiang wOTkAE AB,C
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYEHITES

Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEFHEE AB,C
Mr. Mai Yang Guang B kL B
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =RESE AB

Remarks:

A: attending seminars and/or training

B: reading Listing Rules, updates, articles and/or materials etc.
C: preparing and/or giving seminar presentations
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee
Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established with the role to
assist the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or policy for
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group, overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures
and considering other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest

Function

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are summarised
below:

(i) to set, review and make recommendations to the Board for
approving the Group’s overall remuneration policy and strategy;

(i) to set, review and approve performance-based remuneration and
individual remuneration packages for the executive Directors and
the Management including terms and conditions of employment as
well as compensation payable due to loss or termination of office,
and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors and INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and/or the CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other
executive Directors and seek internal and external professional advices if
considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to
consider and approve the annual remuneration of the Directors for the
Year.

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meeting for the
Year was as follows:

Members KB

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEFHEE
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest =ERGEEE

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year. At least
7 days’ notice has to be given prior to any meeting being held unless all
members of Remuneration Committee unanimously waive such notice.

The Company prepared and delivered meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Remuneration Committee’s
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Remuneration Committee’s
members for comments within a reasonable time after this meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of
the minutes were sent to the Remuneration Committee’s members for
records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
Remuneration Policy

After annual review in the aforesaid meeting, the Directors’ emoluments
remain unchanged. The Chairman and the Deputy Chairman are entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$150,000. In addition, the Deputy
Chairman and the CEO were entitled to monthly salary of HK$120,000
and HK$33,478 respectively, subject to annual review with reference to
their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing market condition.

One of the non-executive Directors is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$150,000 as a position of Director. The other non-executive
Director is not entitled to annual remuneration but is entitled to, if any,
discretionary bonus to be determined at the discretion of the Board and
the remuneration committee of the Board.

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office
as the INEDs except for their entitlement of an annual remuneration of
HK$150,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing
market condition.

The Company aims to attract, retain and motivate talented and
recognised staff, the Management and Directors of the Group by
adoption of share option scheme and share award scheme. The
Company adopted a share option scheme on 11 October 2012. During
the Year, no share options had been granted and no share option was
outstanding as at 31 December 2018. The Company adopted a share
award scheme on 30 August 2018 (the “2018 Scheme”). As at 31
December 2018, no share award was granted pursuant to the 2018
Scheme. The 2018 Scheme is a discretionary scheme of the Company,
which does not constitute a share option scheme or an arrangement
analogous to a share option scheme for purpose of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 15 August
2018 and notes to the financial statements for a summary and principal
terms of its rules.

Remuneration payable to the senior management and highest paid

employees of the Company by band is disclosed in Note 12 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and CPD of Directors and senior management of
the Group, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegated daily management and administration
functions to the Management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the Management are reviewed from time to time.
The Company would formalise the division of responsibility between the
Board and the Management when the operational requirement of the
Group justifies such division.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the Independent
Auditors by the Shareholders at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 6 June 2018 (the “2018 AGM”). In order to maintain
the independence and objectivity of the Independent Auditors (which for
these purposes include any entity under common control, ownership
or management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally),
they will not be engaged for non-audit work unless it has been pre-
approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the Company’s non-audit
services policy.

Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to provide non-
audit services, such as to provide a confirmation letter to the Board and a
copy of this letter to the Stock Exchange to confirm, among others, that
the continuing connected transaction had not exceeded the stipulated
caps for the transaction, as part of the process for the annual review
of the transaction as required under the Listing Rules during the Year.
The fundamental policy of the Group is to ensure that the engagement
of the Independent Auditors for non-audit services will not harm their
independence or cause any bias on audit works for the presentation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. During the Year, the
fees for engaging HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to carry out work
in connection with the renewal and the annual review of a continuing
connected transaction, and review of the profit guarantee of subsidiaries
amounted to HK$330,000, in aggregate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (Continued)

At the 2018 AGM, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed
by the Shareholders as the Independent Auditors. The audit fees for
auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
was HK$1,500,000.

The accounts for the Year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Audit Committee recommended to the
Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will be nominated for
re-appointment as the Independent Auditors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report
as well as inside information announcements and financial disclosures
published as required under the Listing Rules.

The Management provides explanation, information and progress update
to the executive Directors and/or the Board in order for it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other issues put before the
Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the HKICPA. A statement by the HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited about their reporting responsibilities for
the Year is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited did not report for the Year that there
was any material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The management is responsible for setting the appropriate
tone from the top, performing risk assessment, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control. Essential to this
risk management and internal control systems are well defined policies
and procedures that are properly documented and communicated to
employees. To this end, the Company continues to allocate resources
for internal control and risk management systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate the risk or failure to achieve business
objectives.

During the Year, the Group has implemented an internal audit
function to review the financial condition, operational condition, risk
management, compliance control and internal control of the Group. The
Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Group’s risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually. During the Year, the Board has reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, through the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
embedded within our business processes so that it functions as an
integral part of the overall operation of the Group. The system comprises
a comprehensive organisation structure with assignment of definite
accountabilities and delegation of corresponding authorities to each
post. Based on our organisation structure, a reporting system has been
developed including reporting channels from division heads of business
units to the Board.

The risk management and internal control systems and accounting
system of the Group are aimed at identifying and evaluating the
Group’s risk and formulate risk mitigation strategies, and to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against unauthorised
use or disposition, transactions are executed in accordance with the
management’s authorisation, and the accounting records are reliable for
preparing financial information used within the business for publication,
maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities and ensuring
the business operations are in accordance with relevant legislation,
regulations and internal guidelines.

)? ERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

B B % B EE 4

EXe2mMAENEMNETE/EXANE BB
BEMBEAZENERELGRIEE  #FRER
B R BB TR A AR B R R A AT B
M ARERRNRERASEEE - E8E
BERTAEAEE TR  ETRRFE AR
o ERkEEABEE - HREREEIAI
ERRGNE  BEENRPABZEITLER
BRMIER  YREEEE - Bt - ARAHF
BERMERTRMEELAREERR BT
SEEANKERMASIBRELEGE(MIER
HIMMKRE  LEE(MIEER) REEDNE
BERER -

REAFER  AEBEEEAMBEZBE - N
ERAKENTBRR 28RN - BARE
B AREERARNEE BERZESREE
LEFEARFHERMAREERAEZER
MHBEAR - UBBESFSETEEEE

SEEBREENAMEZERENAS - RAF
BER EFCCERERZBEERIAKER
REBRAREERCNRIERBRIL -

AEENRABREERABEZERGRARES
BFEET FERNAAEEERBZENAKXDE
N RERTIA—EEARBREETOIRELRE
BAIRHOAERE DR EEBERBER - ER
BAWABERE  BEEAR(BRBREBEMLN
MATERNEFTERENRE)DERTSE °

AEENRREEIAMEZZRARE R
0 BB KR Ah AN B A9 R B K B E PR AR
AP B RS IRHSBRENBREERS
RE - BRRERECAILE  BRZXZT
REEEEMNRBET  BRETLENA
FREEUANGRAEXBHAHNENMBE
B BRHEERAENRENE  MERER
MEEN S RBARE - AR EAERIES] -

ot
ot

EEEREREXEEERAT —T—\FFH



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Group has an organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and authority. Each department is accountable for its daily
operations and is required to report to executive Directors on a regular
basis. Policies and procedures are set for each department, which
includes establishing and maintaining effective policies to enhance the
ability of risks identification to which the Group are exposed and taking
appropriate actions to manage such risks, establishing a structure with
defined authorities and proper segregation of duties; monitoring the
strategic plan and performance; designing an effective accounting and
information system; controlling price sensitive information; and ensuring
swift actions and timely communication with our stakeholders.

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of
each level of the structure are summarized below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies and
objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives; ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems; and
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to perform
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control systems;
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis; reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at least annually, and such
review should cover all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance control; ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions; and
considering major findings on risk management and internal control
matters, and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.

The senior management designs, implements and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems; identifies,
evaluates and manages the risk that may potentially impact the major
processes of the operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate
risk in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and follow
up the findings on risk management and internal control matters raised
by the internal auditor or external risk management and internal control
adviser; and provides confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

}()} ERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

B B B R D B E ()

AEEREBE BRI BFERERE ME N OER
g - SHMPIAREHEARENR  XATHRA
HITEEHE  AKEERASHPIRIZER
REREF BRVIEREFERRRAREH
BIARGEEFTEERREROES - LRBUVEE fE
NEBZERR BUREAREILAER
EDENARE  EREBEFILKRR  HEA
MEREARSE  BHRESZEHR - #ER
THARBRKEFHEER

AEE AR
ZREHAEMT

BEARBURRBASHEENT

EXZCREEEAKRENERRBRER X
HELETEEEAEREERBAEMAR
MEREERER  BRARERYLMERE
Mﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ”ﬁ&ﬁ$?&m§ rREEE

BEYRKREENANITETEZMNRT - BiE
MEEER o
EZZECEEmEEERTAREERELA

MEZBRANRBE  SEEEASENRRE
BRAMERRR  BFE R —RAKE
R EE M A RREE IR RNKY - MAERE

EREZHBEAEE  BREME  2EMAR
B BERAEESF  AMBEZLMBRE
BEABRENER BIEELKER - 57

HENREE  RESRREERABEDE
BNIEHEHR  THEFRRERRLR
# -

SREBER  BEREUAREFEEBRNE
fEBE RAMEEER  EHA - AFEREEA
%%%%ﬁfgmﬁmﬂ B EEBERE

Bx Ko SRERHE b AR EE @B ¢ s B B R
EW&@%%YW% B i 1R % A0 B0 BS R R R
b O é@&@%wi$ﬁmﬂ€ &R
&ﬁi%Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁaﬁ%ﬂ n B IR K A

EEBANKK -

3(; COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the findings of the
review and makes recommendations to the Board and management
to improve the material systems deficiencies or control weaknesses
identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018 and considers them effective and adequate.

Risk Management Procedures

In addition to the Board’s responsibilities, the Company has developed
a risk management process to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks and to resolve material internal control defects. Senior management
is responsible for the annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will
meet with various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal control
defects, including any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are
compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are documented.
The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of senior
management and presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for
their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results;
(i) the probability that the risk will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at
which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

Establish risk context — internal audit establishes common risk
assessment and criteria and sets up risk reference tables for the Group.

Risk identification — departments identify the risks that potentially impact
the key process of their operations.

Risk assessment — departments assess and score the risks identified
along with their impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk treatment — departments assess effectiveness of existing controls
and provide treatment plans when required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Procedures (Continued)

Risk reporting and monitoring — departments monitor risk mitigating
activities. Risks are regularly reported at appropriate level within the
Group and assurance is provided on the progress of treatment plans.

Principal Risks

The Group faces a number of principal risks and uncertainties that if not
properly managed could create an exposure for the Group. Thorough
risk assessment and mitigation help ensure these risks are well managed
and governed effectively. Principal risks identified by the Group are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report under the section headed “Risks and
Uncertainties Relating to the Group’s Business”.

Procedures and Controls over Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Group has internal policy and
procedures which strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information
and has communicated to all staff; the Board is aware of its obligations
to announce any inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules
and conducts the affairs with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012. In addition, only Directors and delegated officers can act as
the Group’s spokesperson and respond to external enquiries about the
Group’s affairs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders and
the Management. The Company Secretary’s biography is set out in the
“Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” section of this report.
During the Year, Mr. Wong Wing Cheung has been the Company
Secretary. Mr. Wong Wing Cheung had undertaken not less than 15
hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguarding the Shareholders’ and the
Company’s interests as a whole and encourages the Shareholders to
attend general meetings for participating in the important decisions of
the Company for which the Shareholders’ approval is required under the
Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda. The Company regards general
meeting as an important event as it provides an important opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Notices
of the 2018 AGM, together with the annual report and circular, was sent
to the Shareholders more than 20 clear business days before the meeting
whereas notice of the special general meeting, together with circular,
was sent to the Shareholders more than 10 clear business days before
the meeting. These can allow more time for the Shareholders to digest
information in the annual report and circulars, and to consider whether
joining the meetings or not.

With the implementation of poll voting in lieu of show of hands at all
general meetings of a listed company, shareholders can fully reflect their
proprietary rights and interests by means of poll which is regarded as
a fairer method of determination on business matters than voting on a
show of hands at general meetings under the Listing Rules.

The Chairman acted as the chairman of the 2018 AGM and the special
general meeting held on 30 August 2018. The Deputy Chairman acted as
chairman of the special general meeting held on 19 November 2018. The
chairman of each meeting took the initiative to demand for a poll at the
commencement of the meetings and explained the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll to the Shareholders. All resolutions were put to vote
and passed by poll under the scrutiny of the independent share registrar.
The poll results were made public by means of public announcements
which were uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group
are made available on the Company’s website, which are regularly
updated.

The Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put
forward proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice
addressed to the Company Secretary at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

The way in which Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

The Directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its bye-laws
shall, on the requisition of Shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a SGM of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

The way in which Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) (Continued)

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited with the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th
Floor, North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents
in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to include the
resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th Floor,
North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), or
SGM, the Shareholders should submit a written notice of those proposals
with the detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th Floor,
North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the Company’s
Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

— At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 20 clear business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
resolution of the Company in AGM
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings (Continued)

At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 10 clear business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in SGM

At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 10 clear business days) in writing for all other SGM of the
Company

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after the
shareholder meeting.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with investors
and develop greater understanding about the Group for international
investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the Group.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings. However, shareholders are
requested to follow Bye-laws 89 of the Bye-laws of the Company
for including a resolution at an SGM. The requirements and
procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the Bye-
laws of the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at a
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless
not less than seven clear days before the date appointed for
the meeting there shall have been lodged at the Office or at the
Registration Office notice in writing signed by some Members
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected. The
period for lodgment of the notice required under this Bye-law shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting, provided that such
period shall be at least seven days.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
Shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhances communications
with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.cs-ih.com) to make
the Group’s information, statutory announcements, and other financial
and non-financial information available on the internet to facilitate its
communication with the Shareholders.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and the

Shareholders, and invites them to share their views and suggestions by
contacting the Investor Relations Team at ir@cs-ih.com

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account the following factors:

(@  the Group’s future operations and earnings;

(b)  the Group’s capital requirements and surplus;

(c) the general financial conditions of the Group;

(d)  contractual restrictions on payment of dividends; and

(e) any other factors that the Board consider relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Act of the Bermuda and the Bye-laws
of the Company. The dividend policy of the Company will be reviewed

from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be
proposed or declared in any particular amount for any given period.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the memorandum of association and the Bye-laws
for the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had fully applied the principles and complied with the
requirements of the CG Code, as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the Year.

CONCLUSION

The Company has maintained a good standard of corporate governance
during the Year. The Company believes that corporate governance
principles and practices are essential to the business communities.
Ongoing effort will be given to review its corporate governance practices
from time to time so to accommodate the changing circumstances. The
Company will strive to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality
of its corporate governance.

TEERTA
ADRRAGF E— B2 E R R A
tEEEFIZRE - FEFZFUZRE -

%

RARAFERNEZIREKRFZIERE
Ao ARAEREDL %Emﬁ%&%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ
EMEEMEE  WARATHHETK®E
HEXRERER MLE%%LZLM°$Q
7hﬁﬂ$%&M%EA%am SERER -

RaeEREFEELEEERAT —T—\aes 0



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
summarizes the environmental, social and governance initiatives, plans
and performance of the Group and demonstrates its commitment to
sustainable development.

The core business of the Group is principally engaged in management of
healthcare investments, natural health food business and the provision of
life healthcare services.

The Group’s vision is “to solve the health problems of people
through our products and services so as to achieve “Healthy, Happy
and Secure Life”. To achieve this, the Group has implemented the
principles of sustainable development at operational levels such as
day-to-day operations, strategic planning and investment, adhered
to the management policies of sustainable environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) development. We are also committed to treating
the Group’s ESG affairs effectively and responsibly, which become a
core part of our business strategy, as we believe this is the key to our
continued success in the future.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Task Force (the “Task Force”). The
Task Force comprises core members from different departments of the
Group and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for the preparation of the ESG Report. The Task Force reports to
the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying and assessing
the Group’s ESG risks, and assesses the effectiveness of the Group’s
ESG internal control mechanism. The Task Force will also examine and
assess our performances in different aspects such as health and safety,
labour standards, and product responsibility in the ESG area. The Board
sets the general direction of the Group’s ESG strategy and ensures the
effectiveness of ESG risk control and internal control mechanism.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless otherwise stated, this report mainly covers the principal
subsidiaries of the Group providing life healthcare services, i.e. the two
clinics under Realyoung International Life Medical Group Company
Limited.

The Group continues to assess the significant ESG areas of different
businesses or substantial subsidiaries to determine whether it is
necessary to include them in the ESG reporting.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Main Board
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”).

The corporate governance practices of the Group are set out in the
corporate governance report on pages 36 to 63 of this report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures
taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group places emphasis on stakeholders and their opinions on the
business and ESG issues of the Group. To understand and respond to
stakeholders’ concerns, the Group communicates with key stakeholders
(including employees, investors, customers, suppliers, government
authorities, and local groups) through different channels, such as
meetings, customer satisfaction surveys, electronic platforms, public
events, etc. While formulating operational strategies and ESG measures,
the Group considers the expectations of stakeholders and continuously
improves its performance through mutual cooperation, thus creating
greater value for society.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major functions
have participated in the preparation of the ESG report to assist the Group
in reviewing its operations and identifying relevant ESG issues, as well
as assessing the importance of related matters to our business and
each stakeholder. Based on the assessed significant ESG issues, a data
collection questionnaire was prepared to collect information from relevant
departments and business units of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

The following table is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues
included in this report:

EZEHBRTME @
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The material ESG aspects of AEERE - HERER

Report Guide HEE the Group EZdER
' '/ ____________________________________'______________________________ |
A.  Environmental A. RE
A1, Emissions Al BB Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse B 5 SR = R A2 HE it P.68
Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
Waste Management EYE e P.70
A2.  Use of Resources A2. BIRfFH Energy Consumption BEREFE P.74
Water Consumption R EFE P.75
A3.  The Environment and A3. RERKRAEZIR Noise Management BEER P.76
Natural Resources
B. Social B. #®&
B1.  Employment Bi. {&f® Compensation and Benefits w3 F P.77
Recruitment, Promotion, B BH - BENEE P79
Incentive and Dismissal
Equal Opportunity TEge P.80
B2. Health and Safety B2, fEHEZ2 Internal Health and Safety NEBREELTEERE P. 81
Management
Occupational Safety Training BELE p.82
B3. Development and Training B3. EREKIFI Training Management EIEE P. 83
Training Courses R P. 83
B4. Labour Standards B4, T EE| Prevent Child and Forced PHIEET RogHl4 T P. 84
Labour
B5.  Supply Chain B5. fEEER Supply Chain Environmental  #E#IRE & P. 86
Management and Social Risk Management ~ # & @ f& & 12
Fair and Open Procurement DNFERARRE P. 86
B6.  Product Responsibility B6. EmaT Quality of Medical Service BERSLE P. 87
Customer Service P R% P.88
B7.  Anti-corruption B7. RES Prevent Corruption and Fraud By IF 85 & & P.89
B8.  Community Investment B8. #HER#EE Corporate Social Responsibility {># it & & F P.90

During the Year, the Group confirmed that it has established appropriate
and effective management policies and control systems for ESG issues
and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance with the
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and suggestions.
You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG Report or our
performance in sustainable development and email it to ir@cs-ih.com.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RE

A1. Emissions

Al. BE Y

General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”)

Environmental Protection Policy and Compliance Issues

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations, focuses on sound
environmental management, and strives to protect the
environment in order to fulfill the Group’s commitment on
social responsibility.

The Group regularly follows the latest national and regional
environmental protection laws and regulations, thereby
focusing on strengthening environmental protection
measures in order to comply with local government-related
laws and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws and
regulations. The relevant laws in Mainland China include the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China” 2 #E A R R )5 2875 ), the
“Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment”
o 8 BE K 8205 7K BRI & 51l ), the “Regulations on the
Administration of Medical Wastes” ( B &R & IR I571), the
“LLaw of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes” { FZE A
RAFEE RS RRENRE), etc.

In the course of business operation of the Group, in addition
to the general emission of greenhouse gases (“GHG”) and
the discharge of domestic waste and sewage, medical
waste is discharged during the provision of medical services
which causes potential impacts on the environment and may
exposes the Group to relevant compliance risk. Therefore,
the Group has formulated relevant rules and regulations for
the effective control and orderly management of medical
wastewater, medical waste, and other pollutants generated
during operation, and supervising the implementation of
environmental protection measures by various departments.
Such measures aim to prevent and reduce pollutants against
the environment, protect and improve the environment,
and protect the health of employees, so as to achieve the
environmental objectives and indicators of the Group.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

68

A1. Emissions (Continued)

General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”) (Continued)

Environmental Protection Policy and Compliance Issues
(Continued)

The responsible persons in charge of the Group’s
environmental affairs supervise the implementation of the
above measures and relevant environmental protection
policies. Under the strict supervision and guidance, various
departments endeavour to implement the environmental
protection policies of the Group and ensure that all operation
processes comply with legal requirements. The responsible
persons at all levels of environmental protection continue to
review the policies and implementation procedures of the
Group and report back to the management appropriately.
Suggestions would be made if necessary. When unexpected
incident causes to abnormal discharge during operation,
the responsible person should take emergency measures
immediately to prevent the outspread of pollution and
report to the management in a timely manner for efficient
coordination.

During the Year, the Group did not have any material
violations of relevant local environmental laws and regulations
in relation to exhaust gas and GHG emissions, water and
land discharge, and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emissions
Exhaust Gas Emissions

Due to our business nature, the Group does not generate
significant amount of exhaust gas emissions directly during
its operations.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emissions (Continued)

GHG Emissions

The principal GHG emissions of the Group are generated
from purchased electricity as it causes emission of GHG. The
Group actively adopts electricity conservation and energy
saving measures to reduce GHG emissions, including:

° Actively adopt measures for environmental protection,
energy conservation, and water saving. Relevant
measures are described in “Electricity Consumption”
and “Water Consumption” under Aspect A2;

° Actively adopt paper saving measures in office.
The relevant measures are described in the section
“Other Waste Reduction Measures — Office Paper
Management” in this Aspect.

The overview of GHG emissions performance:

2018
Total emissions
Indicator’ (tCO,e)
FhEE
BE (B-ELHREER)

A. BIE @)

A1, BERR YD ()
B2 3R K R 2 SRR HE B (D)

BERBE N

AEENTEZRERBHEBRRR
SNBEENEKEEER R E R EH
Mo NEE TR R RKEE EME LR
W URAREREHENR - 81

o FE & B B ER IR BN BE BD K HB
B HEEESEA2E D F
[BeRBFE | R [ KRB #E | 9 &
LA

« ERAZWERREGOMARKSE
6 - IR AT [ KA
LB G — A = AR
B0 -

BEREHMRBEMRL :

2017
Intensity? Total emissions Intensity
(tCO,e/employee) (tCO,)  (tCO,e/employee)
BE(M=F kReE RE(B=%
tHEE &) (M-E{HEE) (HEEE/ES)

GHG emissions
BERBHR 103.22
The increase in total GHG emission was mainly attributable
to the increase in electricity consumption (please refer to
“Energy Consumption” section under Aspect A2 in this
report), while the decrease in intensity was resulted from the
increase in the number of employees during the Year.

Notes:

1. The GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent, with reference to, but not limited to, the latest released
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis.

2. As at 31 December 2018, the number of employees of the
subsidiaries covered by the ESG Report was 65, which would also
be used for calculating other intensity data.

1.59 92.65 2.38

BERBHENEEENEASRE
EEM(FLRABEA2HD [8LIR
HREDS > MERZETREER
RETHBEARFEAMEMN -

CER

1. RERBINEEBER_SGLLREES
2 I2REBEEIRREME
frr) s Bl B I B A E R YA T -

2. BHE-—ZT—-N\FE+=-A=+—8 "
AIRE  -HERERREEREZ
MEBEARIE TR AGSA « I EIE
TMERTTEEME EBIENMKE -

RuEREEELEEsRAs —T- ) aasy 09



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
WYL~ sh& B E - (8)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
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Al.

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management

The Group adopts targeted treatment measures for the
following types of solid waste:

Medical Wastes

The business of the Group shall comply with environmental
laws and regulations, including the provisions for the
treatment of medical waste. A comprehensive set of
procedures has been established in accordance with the
“Regulations on the Administration of Medical Wastes of
Guangdong Province” { ER & B EREYE E &) and the
“Measures for Medical Wastes Management of Medical
of Health Institutions” { B FE F AW BEEEYE B W
7%). If medical waste is not properly disposed, it will pose
threat to the environment and human health; therefore,
we are responsible to handle waste in statutory, safe and
professional manner. For the medical wastes such as syringe,
infusion set, blood transfusion tool, pharmaceutical bottle,
blood purification materials, cotton swab for disinfection,
cotton swab and pad, indwelling needle, therapeutic sheet
and waste medicines, etc., the Group has formulated and
effectively implemented relevant written procedures for the
treatment of medical wastes to ensure proper management
and safe disposal of the wastes.

The Group provides training to all frontline staff to ensure that
all related staff are familiar with the relevant procedures. The
relevant procedures and systems are as follows:

° Identification and separation of types of waste:
separate and classify different types of waste from
sources (ward, laboratory, inspection room, etc.) under
the supervision of responsible personnel with clear
operational guidelines and manuals according to the
“Classified Catalogue of Medical Wastes” { E& & &) 5>
BA);

° Transportation and storage of wastes: use puncture-
proof and leak-proof container, bags are properly
bundled and sealed, use special transport trolleys,
store waste in covered areas away from normal access,
and take safety measures to prevent unauthorized
reuse;

° Use of personal protective equipment: identify and
provide special clothing, gloves, masks and eye
protection to employees responsible for waste
transportation and disposal; and
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)
Medical Wastes (Continued)

° Proper waste disposal: collect and follow-up
disposal by qualified and licensed service providers
specialized in the treatment of medical waste (including
incineration, landfill or chemical and biochemical
treatment of applicable types of wastes) at the final
stage. Such wastes are generally not recyclable and
reusable because of their hazardous nature.

The overview of medical wastes discharge performance:

A.

RIE (®)

A1, BERRH ()
BEY B ()
EREY (H)

s HUEREREY: REBAFERRK
FEFREVRENAERAR
EREEEB(ERERED
BN BB BERE
W BRRIE)ETIHE RRE
RE - A RNZETEMEESE
- BEAATEEENA -

BERDHFBRESL :

2018 2017
Total medical Total medical
wastes discharged Intensity wastes discharged Intensity
(calculated in tonnes) (tonnes/employee) (calculated in tonnes) (tonnes/employee)
BEREBVHEREER BE BEREBVHFREE BE
(AWt E) (W, fE8) (LWt &) (W, fE8)
| L
0.67 0.01 112 0.03

Despite increasing number of patients in the clinics in the
reporting period, the medical waste discharge in the Year
was reduced as the Group improved its control on pollutant
discharge.

Non-hazardous Wastes

In addition to medical waste, the Group generates general
non-hazardous wastes during its operations, including paper,
paper towels, masks, plastic gloves, disposable protective
gowns, disposable shoe covers, and other uncontaminated
containers. After collection and classification, such wastes
will eventually be collected and disposed by property
management company. Recyclable wastes (such as paper)
will be recycled for reuse.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

72

Paper consumption has declined in the Year as the Group
improved its control on the use of paper in offices.

During the Year, the Group did not measure the amount
of general non-hazardous wastes other than paper. The
Group will continue to improve its information collection and
disclosure system in 2019 to enhance the transparency
of information disclosure in respect of the discharge
performance of the Group.

Other Waste Reduction Measures — Office Paper
Management

The Group is committed to establishing an electronic office.
The office makes full use of the online system, general
business notices and data transmissions are conducted
through the Internet system, printing and copying are
minimized to the largest extent, office paper is used both
sides, promoting the use of recycled paper. The office is
responsible for supervising the amount of paper usage;
waste paper is collected and disposed by the administrative
department and the office. Besides, the Group has been
exploring opportunities to upgrade and strengthen clinic
management and administrative information technology
systems, such as planning to upgrade our electronic medical
record software system to reduce the use of paper.

RIE (®)

A1. Emissions (Continued) BER YD ()
Waste Management (Continued) EEY)E IR (&)
Non-hazardous Wastes (Continued) BmEREEY (E)
The overview of major non-hazardous wastes discharge TEEEREYPRERIE A :
performance:
2018 2017
Total Total
non-hazardous non-hazardous
waste discharged Intensity ~ waste discharged Intensity
Type of waste (unit) (unit/employee) (unit) (unit/employee)
EEBNHER BE BEBMHEK BE
BmER BE(Ef) (Bfr/fE8) BE (B (Bfy/EE)
' ! ! |
Paper 0.11 tonnes 0.002 tonnes/ 0.16 tonnes 0.004 tonnes/
R Employee Employee
0.111 0.0021,/[EE 0.160 0.0041,/ €8
25,000 sheets 384.62 sheets/ 37,500 sheets 961.54 sheets/
Employee employee
25,0005  884.623 /€S 37,5005 961.54% /B8
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al.

A2,

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)
Wastewater Discharge and Treatment

The Group discharges operational water and medical
wastewater during its daily operation process, the disinfected
medical wastewater, together with employees’ operational
and domestic wastewater are discharged into the municipal
sewage pipeline network for processing in regional water
purification plant. After wastewater inspection, the water
discharge of the Group satisfied the level 3 standard
requirement of the second time-period of “Discharge Limits
of Water Pollutants” {7K)5 ¥ HE MBR1E ) (DB44/26-2001) of
Guangdong Province.

Since the Group’s wastewater is discharged into the
municipal sewage pipeline network for processing in regional
water purification plant, the amount of the Group’s water
consumption represents the wastewater discharge volume.
The data of wastewater discharge volume will be described in
“Water Consumption” of Aspect A2.

Use of Resources
General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group aims to actively promote the effective use of
resources, real-time monitoring of the potential impacts
of business operations on the environment, and promote
green office and operating environment based on three basic
principles, i.e. reduce, recycle and reuse, thus minimizing
the Group’s environmental impacts and enhancing its
environmental sustainability. The Group supervises the use
of water, electricity and other resources, measures usage
on monthly basis, conducts targeted administration of major
energy-consuming equipment, and standardizes equipment
operation procedures to accomplish full and effective use of
energy.

The Group strictly complies with the “Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China” { # # A & £ il B /K% ),
“Electricity Power Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(rh#E AR FLFEE /15%), “Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China” {# % A R EXFIBgEREN 4975 )
and other relevant laws and regulations. During the Year, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance of the
above laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)
General Disclosure and KPIs (Continued)
Energy Consumption

The major energy consumption of the Group during its daily
operation is operational electricity consumption. The Group
has formulated rules and regulations to achieve the goal of
electricity saving and effective use of electricity. The relevant
specific measures are as follows:

° Using energy-saving equipment, appliances and lamps
in office;

° Running idle equipment, unreasonable electric wiring
distribution, etc. are forbidden;

° Requiring employees to pull down the main gate
switch, the water curtain wall switch and the electric
switch of the front glass door before off duty, and pull
them up the next morning;

° Turning on electrical equipment, including lighting
equipment, air conditioners, fans, etc. during business
hours depending on actual needs, and encouraged to
turn off the power when not in use or before off duty;

° Regulating the use of air conditioners strictly, the
temperature shall not be lower than the default,
and turn off the air conditioner in all VIP rooms and
treatment rooms when they are not in use; and

° Enhancing the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of all electronic
equipment for effective use of electricity.

In addition, the Group installed LED energy-saving lamps
in all lighting areas, and instils the consciousness of energy
conservation and environmental protection into the work and
life of every employee through posting power-saving slogans,
etc. In addition, the Group has gradually replaced obsolete
equipment with energy-saving certified alternatives to reduce
energy consumption and consequent GHG emissions.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. BE @)

A2. ERME A #)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

General Disclosure and KPIs (Continued)
Energy Consumption (Continued)

During the Year, the electricity consumption of the Group and
its intensity were as follows:

2018
Energy
consumption
Type of energy (kWh)
RRHME
REREER (FRE)

— R T B RENER ()
REFOH #E ()
AEE AEEREENHEHTER

2017
Energy
Intensity consumption Intensity
(kWh/employee) (kWh) (kWh/employee)
BE BREREE BE
(TE®/EE) (TE®) (TR&/ER)

Electricity
EW)| 186,793.00

The increase in electricity consumption was attributable to
the increase in the number of patients in the clinics, while the
decrease in intensity was caused by the significant increase
in the number of employees.

Water Consumption

Water consumption of the Group contains mainly of
office water usage and medical water consumption. We
encourage all employees and customers to develop the
habit of conserving water consciously. The Group has
been strengthening its water-saving promotion, posting
water-saving slogans, and guiding employees to use water
reasonably.

During the Year, the water consumption (i.e. wastewater
discharge) of the Group and its intensity were as follows:

2,873.74 146,989.00 3,768.95

AEEENRERNRAB/Z A
BABIEN - MBEREE TR EH
RETHEBKREEM -

KR H ¥
AEBNRKIEZZRAEAKE
BEAK RMAXBAEREINE
FEXRBBHORAKNEE  £AF
B -BEMEEKERE R KR
S| BETAEANK-

RAFE - AEBEFEKE (B)5KEE
MEI)MEZES

2018 2017
Water consumption Intensity Water consumption Intensity
(calculated in tonnes) (tonnes/employee) (calculated in tonnes) (tonnes/employee)
AKE (LI E) EE(M EE) FKE (UM E) EE(M B E)
| L
1,226.98 18.88 1,332.00 34.15

The decrease in water consumption was due to the
encouragement from the Group’s management to employees
on water conservation, thus achieving a preliminary result.
The decrease in intensity was due to the significant increase
in the number of employees.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2

A3.

Use of Resources (Continued)
Use of Packaging Materials

In addition, due to our business nature, the Group neither
produce any final products, nor does it have any industrial
facilities. Therefore, it does not consume significant amount
of packaging materials during its daily operation.

The Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group pursues environmental best practice and
focuses its business impact on the environment and natural
resources. In addition to complying with environmental
related regulations and international standards to
appropriately protect the natural environment, the Group has
integrated the concept of environmental protection into its
internal management and daily operational activities and is
committed to achieving environmental sustainability.

Noise Management

Noise may also be generated during the operation of the
Group; therefore, the Group has taken measures such as
sound insulation, noise reduction and shockproof for sound-
generating equipment. The office area and medical treatment
area of the Group satisfy the relevant requirements of the
“Emission Standard for Community Noise” (it & 4 iR ER 15 1%
BHEEAE) (GB22337-2008).

B. Social

76

B1.

Employment
General Disclosure

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset and
the core competitive advantage of the Group; therefore, the
success of the Group is highly dependent on its capability to
attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group adheres
to a people-oriented approach, respects and safeguards
the legitimate interests of every employee, standardizes
labour employment management, protects employees’
occupational health and safety. The Group also enhances
democratic management, protects the vital interests of
employees, and fully respects and values their enthusiasm,
initiative and creativity in order to build a harmonious staff
relationship.

A. BIE @)

A2.

A3.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Employment (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)

The Group actively complied with laws and regulations,
such as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(REARLFBLEL) (“Labour Law”) and the “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” & AR

HFMELE)A RE) (“Labour Contract Law”). The Company
has accordingly formulated a series of relevant personnel
management policy to provide employees with a healthy,
positive and motivative working atmosphere, and guides
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into the
long-term development of the Group.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any material non-
compliance of laws and regulations in respect of human
resources.

Compensation and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, equitable, reasonable,
and competitive remuneration system for salary payments
to employees based on the principle of fairness,
competition, incentives, reasonableness, and legitimacy. The
remuneration of the Group’s employees comprises basic
salary, performance bonus, overtime payment, position
subsidy, related subsidies and other various bonuses.
In addition, the Group conducts annual assessments in
accordance to changes in macroeconomic factors (e.qg.
national policies and price levels), industry and regional
remuneration levels, changes in the Group’s development
strategy, and the overall effectiveness of the Group, and
makes corresponding adjustments to staff remuneration.

The Group has signed and executed labour contracts
with employees in accordance with the “Labour Contract
Law”. The signing rate of the labour contracts is 100%. In
accordance with the law, the Group legally pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees, namely
endowment insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance,
and housing provident fund, to ensure that employees are
covered by social insurance.

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

BB A E KB (H)

B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)

Compensation and Benefits (Continued)

The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests of
labour in accordance with the requirements in “Labour Law”
and related national and local laws and regulations, respects
the rights of employees to rest and leave, and regulates
their working hours and their rights for various types of
rest times and holidays. In accordance with the “Labour
Law”, we implement five-day work, weekend shift duty,
eight working hours per day, and follow the “Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees” B T %5 % 4= R B {151 )
and other relevant regulations to implement the paid leave
system for employees. Meanwhile, overtime wage is paid for
labour exceeding statutory working hours in accordance with

national laws and regulations.

The Group has been committed to providing thoughtful and
comprehensive employee benefits and actively organizing
various activities. On one hand, it creates a warm family
atmosphere with meticulous care to employees. On the other
hand, it helps employees to enjoy work-life balance through
such benefits. The relevant benefits and activities are as

\

B. &2 @)

Bi. EfE (&)
— R E (&)

HEER (8

ERAER

BIRGI)FHBERTE -

FRRS T & M o

[ &

follows: - HEREAMRESHNT
e Provide family vacation benefits such as marriage leave o RERERBREF -
and maternity leave so that employees can spend time BRER
with their families; B

° Deliver festive foods such as moon cakes and °
dumplings to employees during certain traditional
festivals (such as Lunar New Year and Mid-Autumn
Festival) in recognition of their contributions and

dedicated work to the Group; and

° Organize various group activities for employees to .
create a dynamic company atmosphere, promote
communication and interaction among colleagues, and
enhance team spirit. During the Year, the Group has

FERPURE)

TR

organized activities as follow: BIPEEBAT -

e An autumn outing activity to enjoy a good time o —E—NFALAREM
in Mid-Autumn Festival at Guangzhou City in T 22 17 A Rk 4F B Y Rk i
September 2018; and EE R

° 2018 annual company gathering.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. &2 @)

B1. {& & (4)

B1. Employment (Continued)

General Disclosure (Continued)
Recruitment, Promotion, Incentive and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved its
recruitment and selection system. In the recruitment process,
we will standardize the hiring procedures and recruitment
principles, adhere to the hiring principles of morality,
knowledge, ability, experience and fitness applicable to job
positions as well as the principles of justice, fairness, equality,
and openness, so as to continuously attract talents.

The Group manages front-line employees and office
staff separately, specifies the basis and process for staff
promotion, transfer and demotion management, regulates
the departure and dismissal process, and protects the
interests of both employees and the Group.

The Group has already implemented a reward system and
also rewarded employees who have made outstanding
contributions to the Group. Staff providing constructive
advices will be awarded based on the level of rationalization
of the advices. Besides, the Group will conduct regular
employee assessment to reward employees with outstanding
performance.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to provide employees with opportunities for
promotion and development based on their work
performance and internal assessment results so as to
explore their potential at work. In order to optimize the
allocation of human resources within the Group, to provide
more opportunities and platforms for employees’ career
development and to meet the Group’s needs of sustainable
development, the Group establishes a reserve talent pool
and arranges tailor-made trainings and leadership positions
for key training targets. The Group gives priority to promote
employees who contribute more than the others.

— R E (&)
BE B RBREE

AEBTHEIMTE AL HERE
KEE - EREBRFREZHAR
BMBRERA  BREREES 2
Mo ERNMEBEARM
ERUMBERA  BRHILE 2
¥ FERARRA G A @R
SIMBEEEAL °

AEEHKREIMBFAE ARE
THREE  HAEABEH AP
MEEREENRENRE - R
BEBERE REEIMNMAKE
BTN -

AEBOEEET —EZBHESN
REOYAEEEREEHMNET -
BETRHOABEZRENERZ  RE
BEEFTHEKER - LI - AEH
EHETEFETINNE  HRX
BREHE THEITER -

AEEEREET " EAFRAN
ZRHE RBREINIERRRE
NEMEZER  RETRHEER
BRHOKE  AERETIEER -
RERAEBERABANERNEL
RE REINBEERREHAEZ
MEEMTE  MEASERE
BRBK - ARERITEREAT
B HEHESHRLHEBHEN
FEE DI AR B R L SR AR - N BB
RRBERMRZNES -

AAEREEELEEERAT —T— ) \aay /Y



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
WYL~ sh& B E - (8)

B. SOCIAL (Continued)

80

B1.

B2.

Employment (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)
Equal Opportunity

The Group strictly complies with national and local
government regulations by adopting a fair, just and open
recruitment process and developing relevant system files to
eliminate discrimination in the recruitment process, whose
employees faces no discrimination regardless of race,
gender, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fithess and nationality, thus allowing them
to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect including recruitment,
salary, training and promotion, with an endeavour to attract
professionals with diverse backgrounds joining the Group.

Health and Safety
General Disclosure

The Group recognizes the importance of the health
and safety of its employees, commits itself to providing
employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable working
environment and strives to eliminate potential health and
safety hazards at workplaces. We enforce relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China” {# A R ZEFIEI & 8))%), “Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China” (AR EFEZ 24
EJ%), “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” { F ZE A R &£
B % 7% B 04 7% ) and “Fire Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (& A R EFBIEFGA).

During the Year, the Group did not record any accident that
resulted in death or serious physical injury and no claim or
compensation were paid to our employees due to such
events. No material non-compliance of laws and regulations
in respect of health and safety of employees were found.
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BB A E KB ()

B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Health and Safety (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)

Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group has formulated a series of professional protection
standards in accordance with laws and regulations such as
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Treatment of Infectious Diseases” { # Z= A R H
EHEBAAA) and maintained a set of internal health and
safety management systems, including but not limited to the
“Policy on the Infectious Disease Prevention and Control”
and “Remaining Drugs Recycling Management”, etc., so as
to ensure the health and safety of customers, the public and BEE .
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employees in the operation. The Group has set up relevant BT - BEEmMEs r AEBEYT

committees to supervise and inspect the Group’s work on J/ATE\IED%%;ZE EORTER i

infectious disease control and management. Specifically,

the Group has established the following occupational safety

measures for employees:

o For the prevention of infectious pathogens, laboratories o BIEPHRLBMEME  BHZE
and medical personnel should wear gloves, masks EBABREREFE  BEAH

with anti-permeation function, goggles, face masks, or
even isolation gowns or aprons with anti-permeation

function;

BBEMERENOE -
HEEREZABH2EMENR

By R 8% -

When infectious patients, or those in close contact with
them is found among employees or clients, employees
should take necessary measures of isolation, treatment
and spread control, and report to the local disease
control centre in a timely manner;

To control the potential spread of infectious diseases
in clinics or laboratories, regular sterilization should
be conducted in both areas. Regular cleaning of air-
conditioning systems and sanitization of carpets should
be arranged while the cleanliness of the passageway
and work environment should be maintained;

A dangerous goods classification system in medical
laboratories has been set up to classify and specify
the hazards of chemicals, reagents, and equipment,
and a comprehensive and systematic system has been
established to manage dangerous goods and reduce
their risk; and

An operating license has been issued by “China Food
and Drug Administration” to ensure the safety of
relevant medical devices.
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B2. Health and Safety (Continued)

General Disclosure (Continued)
Occupational Safety Training
Medical safety and quality trainings

As medical work is exposed to greater occupational risks,
the Group places special emphasis on prevention of
occupational hazards and related trainings. The Group has
formulated the “Policy on the Medical Quality and Safety
Training”, organized various kind of safety education by
different means such as the trade unions, and formulated
safety operation procedures as the major content of
occupational safety education based on medical treatment
subjects and medical equipment. We implemented “three-
level” safety education for our employees, including
orientation trainings, position trainings and on-site trainings.
The Group has provided trainings and examinations on
policies and regulations related to healthcare management,
the regulations of the Group’s clinic, the regulations on the
operation of medical equipment, medical waste treatment
and occupational protection, as well as medical safety
working experience, so to assist employees to familiarize
the operational procedures and regulations of occupational
health and safety, and strengthen their ability of controlling
occupational hazards. In addition, we also make use of
trainings, billboards, and pamphlets to raise our employees’
awareness of self-care. We will also organize a series of
occupational health talks such as disease prevention lectures
to enhance our employees’ health awareness.

Fire Safety Training

The Group has also formulated fire safety systems in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China” { & 2 A K& 2k 7 B 8 b7 )% ) and the
“Provisions on Supervision and Administration of Fire Control
at Construction Projects” (2% Li2)EM B EEEHE). By
implementing the principle of “mainly prevention, combining
prevention and elimination”, fire drills are conducted to
popularize knowledge of fire prevention, staff’'s awareness
of fire prevention are raised and fire evacuation plans are
improved to strengthen employees’ ability to escape from
a fire scene. In addition, we also have first aid kits and fire
extinguishers in workplace in response to emergencies.

B2.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. &2 @)

B3. % E Kl

B3. Development and Training

General Disclosure

The Group focuses on corporate internal management
training and the establishment of development system.
Through multiple training modes of induction training,
management personnel training, technical personnel training
and pre-post training, diverse needs of employees at all
levels are fulfilled and their skills are enhanced such that they
can continue to provide high-quality services to assist the
Group’s sustainable development while in turn supporting
them in personal growth and development.

Training Management

The Group has developed training related procedures
to regulate the training management of employees. The
management regularly formulates training proposals and
establishes corporate training files. The management
regularly reviews the effectiveness of different training
programs and courses to help improve the efficiency of the
Group’s training system. According to the training proposals,
the Group evaluates and monitors the implementation of its
training courses to provide appropriate training courses for
different levels of employees.

Training Courses

The in-house corporate training of the Group includes
various forms of training courses (including seminars
and lectures), visits and inspections, business studies,
distribution and posting of promotional materials, field
rehearsals and self-study. Outsourcing training includes
engaging tertiary institutions, research and development
agencies, government agencies and industry management
departments to provide lectures for the Group.

Newly recruited employees are required to receive short-
term induction training. The contents mainly include the
introduction of the Group and our business, the development
and trend of medical anti-aging business, professional basic
knowledge, internal corporate organizational structure and
management system, and daily conduct standards. The
company’s business department will also arrange new
employees to visit the Group’s agencies in field, so as to help
them understand corporate culture and systems at a faster
pace.
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B3.

BA4.

Development and Training (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)
Training Courses (Continued)

The medical professionals of the Group can participate
in academic activities related to their majors, including
international academic conferences, academic forums in
China, academic seminars, continuous medical education
projects in national level, and academic lectures by well-
known local and overseas experts, etc.

The Group also recognizes the importance of occupational
safety training and fire training to protect the personal safety
of employees. The relevant policies have been described in
detail in sections B2 “Occupational Safety Training” and “Fire
Safety Training”.

Labour Standards
General Disclosure
Prevent Child and Forced Labour

The Group has complied with the “Convention Concerning
the Abolition of Forced Labour” (BE438:H B A 4))) in
respect of employment of labour, the “Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China” { A #E A R X MBI 24 &)%) in
respect of the prevention of child labor, and the “Provisions
on Prohibition of Child Labor” {Z2 1§ FE T35 ), which
has been enacted and implemented since 1 December 2002.

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of any child
labor and forced labor. Employment will only be permitted for
staff at an age of 16 or above. New employees are required
to provide true and accurate personal data when they are
employed. Recruiters should strictly review the entry data
including medical examination reports, academic credentials,
ID cards, household registration, degree certificates and
other information. The Group has established comprehensive
recruitment procedures to check the background of
candidates in order to prevent any child labor or forced labor
in operation.

The Group and its employees signed legal labor contracts
in accordance with laws, so that there is no compulsory
use of labor. For the use of false information or in violation
of the provisions of the Group, the probation period shall
be immediately terminated or the labor contract shall be
terminated.

B. &2 @)

B3.

B4.

R R |
—RIRE (&)
EHIRE(H)

AEBNESEXRABAINZME
HEXBHMBMEE  SREER
Bfixngs BRNEMRE 2
mifee BREREEEBSEHREZR
= BARINNRFERBIMEEL S
EFE-

AEBTBRSERRER2HEIR
HHBINIAREBEETIBAZZ -
AHRRELAEB2H Y MR L 21T

IR B EREY ] —E S mE
i o

& T %A

—RIRE

B EIRARMET

AEECETERERS TC(ERR

BEBHRH)  AEBHLEETM(H
EARKNMESFHE) UWRB-F

E-F+_A-BEHERRITH
(BILEREIRE) -

AEBBERZEFEAEFRNEIRR
BT AEBEREEHRTEIEA16
BALWET  WERKFEIAR
FIRHEEERMNEAER - BE
AEBEBRBEABRENBEBRR
& BFEH - 5FHE-PO -2
NEZEH AEBEEUFTRE
BREAEBSENTZMRERRE - N
by & & P IF E R T =& T sk 58 4l
BEp o

AREEETREFETAEATIS
Ba R - B R R AT
B BN EAEBRE R SR B AR
W3R % AR LS M A I
BHAR -

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
WYL~ shd KR E R (8)

B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B4.

B5.

Labour Standards (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)
Prevent Child and Forced Labour (Continued)

In addition, the Group’s employees’ overtime work complies
with the principle of voluntariness, so as to avoid violation
of labor standards and effectively protect the rights and
interests of employees. The Group also prohibits punitive
measures, management methods and behaviors such as
verbal abuse, physical punishment, violence, and mental
oppression on employees for any reason.

During the Year, no material non-compliance of the laws
and regulations in respect of the prevention of child labor or
forced labor have been identified by the Group.

Supply Chain Management
General Disclosure

In addition to purchasing medical equipment and drugs
according to the specifications of the required products, price
trends of medical devices and drugs, and product demand,
the Group also places great emphasis on the management
of potential environmental and social risks in the supply
chain. The Group has established a rigorous and regulated
procurement system and supplier selection procedures, and
put forward requirements for suppliers on environmental and
social risk control.

In the process of supply chain management, the Group
strictly complies with the “Pharmaceutical Administration
Law of the People’s Republic of China” { & #E A R X A
&% %5 38 K ), “Regulations for the Implementation of
the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s
Republic of China”  # % A & £ F1 B % & B 12 )% B i 1§
B ) , “Regulations for the Control of Narcotic Drugs and
Psychotropic Drugs” < it B %2 in F0 K5 49 82 0 B 2 {5 01), the
“Measure for the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices”  BESEMEBEEIRAE), etc., and other relevant
laws and regulations to minimize the potential environmental
and social risks in the supply chain.

B. &2 @)

B4.

B5.

EEEREREXEEERAR

8 T2 Q)
—RIRE (&)
B5 1B T3 414 T (M)

gboh - AEBE T MEERESER
Al - A 2@ RS TER - EH
EE TG  AKETRLEAEMH
EHHEITETEE  BF 2
hoRBHEEFEIIEERE  EE
FEMITR -

AEE SRV RIHEMEREY
BT HBH S THBEERER
MBEXEH -

HEEEE
—REE

BRTREMFEMNRRL  BRES
M&REmHERBE &EMRFT KK
BEESMRERIN  AKETS
EERHEERPBERRENLER
SEEIE c AREBYTEBEMR
BEMRBERAMMEAIERE
THEERBREL TRERESAR
20T E AR EK -

AEBEEHEREEBED B
RET(PEARKVNBEREE
E) (PEARAMBEZERZE
B R P ) il BE BE 50 M0 A5 19 B2
ERGH ) M(BRESMEEETEMHR
E)EHRBEARER  URAREDN
MAOHERPBENREREEE

72
o0
2

o

—z-naex 8D



ENVIRONMENTAL,

BBE R @ K VR (1)

B. SOCIAL (Continued)

86

B5. Supply Chain Management (Continued)

General Disclosure (Continued)
Supply Chain Environmental and Social Risk Management

The Group expects suppliers to meet our standards in many
aspects such as environment, quality, society, corporate
governance, and business ethics. We have formulated
relevant regulatory documents on environmental, social
and ethical standards requiring suppliers to bring a positive
impact on environmental and social matters. Major scope
covers legal compliance, human rights protection, employee
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics and
environmental protection.

Drugs

The review introduction and procurement of the drugs shall
be discussed and concluded by the medical professionals of
the Group.

Medical Equipment and Medical Consumables

The review introduction of medical equipment and medical
consumables as well as the temporary purchase of licensed
pharmaceuticals shall all subject to discussion and decision
by medical professionals of the Group. The relevant medical
equipment suppliers shall possess relevant qualifications
such as the “Operation Permit for Medical Device” (& & z%
WS L FF AT 7E), otherwise the Group will terminate its supply
contract.

Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement process strictly follows the relevant
provisions of the “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of
China” { 1 #E A R A B R 1R %1% ) and other relevant
regulations, and is in an open, fair and impartial environment.
The Group will not discriminate against any suppliers, and will
not allow any corruption or bribery, and employees and other
individuals who have interest in relevant suppliers will not be
permitted to participate in related procurement activities. The
Group focuses on the integrity of its suppliers and partners.
We will only select suppliers and partners who have good
business records in the past and have committed in any
serious law or business ethics.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. &2 @)

B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmET

General Disclosure

The Group places great emphasis on the quality of
medical services and corporate reputation. The Group
employs professional medical teams with medical licenses
to manage the Group’s products and medical service
quality by the standard of hospital management. We also
actively ensure the quality of our services through internal
controls and are committed to providing medical services
that meet international industry standards. We have also
been maintaining communication with our customers
to ensure that we understand and cater to their needs
and expectations. We also expect to grasp the degree
of satisfaction of our customers so as to continuously
improve our service quality. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations. According to the “Regulation on
the Administration of Medical Institutions” ¢ & /& 1 # & 12
& 5l ) and its provisions of implementation rules, all our
medical institutions can only operate subject to obtaining
“The Practice License of Medical Institutions” (22 /8 # & #,
#2FA[HE). At the same time, we also actively comply with
consumer protection laws and regulations such as the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests” { F#E AR FEMBEEE & #
#HIRFEE), the “Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (P ZE AR KEMBIESEE), and the “Measures for the
Administration of Medical Advertisements” { B&/& & &5 & 12 i)
ED.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any material
non-compliance of the laws and regulations in respect of its
quality of products and services.

Quality of Medical Service

The Group provides professional, high-quality and highly
efficient services to different customers in various ways,
actively creates value for customers, concerns, explores
and responds to customer needs, and strives to provide
customers with services beyond their expectations.
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B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality of Medical Service (Continued)

In order to maintain service quality, the Group has formulated
the “Policy on the Medical Quality and Safety Training” for
medical centres. Through employees’ training, we guarantee
the quality and safety of medical services we provide to our
customers, details of which is in Aspect B2 “Occupational
Safety Training”. The Group also ensures the quality of
medical services by improving staff’s professional standards
through continuous training of employees, especially medical
staff, details of which is described in Aspect B3 “Training
Courses”.

During the Year, the Group joined the Guangzhou Bioindustry
Alliance (&N A& ¥E 2 ), which is a local and non-
profit social organization voluntarily formed by upstream
and downstream enterprises in the city’s biological industry
chain, scientific research institutes, high schools, industry
organizations, medical institutions, and investment and
financing institutions, with an objective of integration of
“government, enterprises, institutions, researchers and
users (BEZHA)”, focusing on the significant needs of
industry development, through government guidance and
socialization to improve the biological ecological chain and
promote the development of bio-pharmaceutical industry.
The Group has joined the Alliance, which aims to leverage
the group of top and highly influential expert consultants and
university research resources backed by the Alliance platform
so as to further consolidate our technological advantages
and provide customers with more professional and qualified
medical service.

Customer Service
Feedback Collection and Research

The Group has a dedicated customer service function to
collect and analyze customer feedback. Through active
extension of services and communication, Customer
Service Division becomes an important constituent to
ensure patients’ positive experience. We conduct customer
satisfaction surveys through questionnaires, results of which
are used to establish benchmarks that monitor changes in
customer experience and satisfaction in areas of specific
services delivery.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Customer Service (Continued)
Feedback Collection and Research (Continued)

The Group also cooperates with third parties from time
to time to conduct comprehensive surveys, analysis and
studies, so as to organize, analyze and study relevant
information on customer experience and satisfaction
obtained from the above methods, thus demonstrating the
improvement of our medical service standards.

Complaint Management

Customers can file complaints by mail, telephone, or in
person. The Group is committed to solving all patient
complaints in the shortest time or on the spot (if possible). For
material complaints that involve clinical safety or may affect
health, the Group will immediately take actions to prevent or
minimize the adverse impact on customers. We require that
every complaint should be properly submitted to and handled
by the responsible personnel and manager and prohibit staff
from reaching a private settlement with the complainant.

Anti-corruption
General Disclosure
Prevent Corruption and Fraud

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the
key to our continued success. Therefore, we attach great
importance to anti-corruption work and system building,
commit ourselves to building a clean and transparent
corporate culture, and pay special attention to the
professional ethics of hospital staff. We strictly comply with
the provisions of laws and regulations such as the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China” { 1 A R 2L AN
ALY, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(PEAREMBIBEIRIZEZE), and “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery” { B8 1A 2 1 75 3 B BX 77
A HE 1738 5F ) . In addition, we strictly comply with the
relevant medical laws and regulations formulated by Chinese
government departments, including the “Code of Conduct
for the Practitioners of Medical Institutions” { B2 %
ANBTTA# ), the “Notice on Printing and Circulating of
“Nine Prohibitions” for Enhancing the Construction of Medical
Health Industry Style” (B ENZS ok BB AT AT RER [ )L

T IHBANY, and the “Notice of the Ministry of Health on
Issuing the Provisions on the Establishment of Commercial
Bribery Record in the Purchase and Sales Medicines” { #
REVBEBHAHPMERBTRLENRE) etc. We
implement a zero-tolerance policy on any accepted bribery of
medical personnel. Any employee found to violate our anti-
corruption and bribery policies will be dismissed.
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B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption (Continued)
General Disclosure (Continued)
Prevent Corruption and Fraud (Continued)

During the Year, the Group did not identify any material
non-compliance of laws and regulations in respect of the
prevention of bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment
General Disclosure
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group believes that corporation is a social cell that grows
with the nurturing of social maternity while shoulders the
responsibility of returning to society. As a responsible medical
service operator, the Group has always been committed to
supporting various public welfare and community activities
and hopes to give back to the community through the
medical profession. The Group actively fulfills its social
responsibilities as a corporate citizen and cultivates its
employees’ sense of social responsibility. Therefore, the
Group encourages employees to participate in charity
activities during their work and private time to make greater
contributions to society. It has also been arranging for the
Group’s staff to participate in activities such as charity events
related to environmental issues, donations for students
and social services. We believe that through personally
participating in activities that contribute to the community,
employees’ civic awareness can be raised to establish the
correct values.

(Continued)
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED

Subject Areas, Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
Bm -

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA : SR

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI' A1.1 (“comply or explain”)

B BUEIRAT .1
([TEFRERE])
KPI' A1.2 (“comply or explain”)

R ERIEEAL2
([TEFRERE]D)
KPI A1.3 (“comply or explain”)

R EBIERA1.3
([TETHEBE])
KPI A1.4 (“comply or explain”)

BB BIERA1.4
([TE-FRERE])
KPI' A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

BB BIERA1.5
([TEFRERE]D)
KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”)

BB UIEIRAT.6
(TThE-TRUARRE )

Description

-BREERERANER #Hd

Information on: (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to Exhaust Gas and
GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
BHEBERMBERBIEMR - RIKKR T
WES  AEREEREVNELS

B : (a) R - R(b)BETHETABERX
TENHEEERAOINER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

B E R R AR -

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.

RERBAHENE (ABFE) R

B o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and intensity.

MEXEEEEMAE (AME) T
ER)

Total non-hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and intensity.
FMEEBREEZMAE (UM
ER)

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

HiURIEERENEERTERE -

B R®E

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HREEREEREZEREMNTE R
BELENEBRAERR o

EBBEXRSFARAIAMNCER
=r RY sube S 5
B HERERBEEIIDRBTER
5| &
Section/Declaration Page
B BH ¥
|
Emissions — Environmental Protection pP.67
Policy and Compliance Issues
M- RERENHERGHREE
Emissions — Exhaust Gas and P.68
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”") Emissions,
Waste Management and Wastewater
Discharge and Treatment
B - BERIORERBHER
FE 1) B IR R S K BE PN B 3B
Emissions — Exhaust Gas and P.68
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
B —BEREREREHR
Emissions — Waste Management P.70
B -—ENER
Emissions — Waste Management P.70
BERY — BEE 2
Emissions — Exhaust Gas and P.68
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
B —EREREREHN
Emissions — Waste Management P.70
B -—ENER
AemseEEEsEsRAn —T— \F5n
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX EBBERIMAERATNCE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG B HERERBFERIIIARE
LIMITED (Continued) §| %:z (#8)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page
BEH —-HREERBRERERE @M EfBH Y
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, Use of Resources — Energy PN%3
including energy, water and other raw Consumption, Water Consumption
materials.
—MREE BERERER(BEER  KEREMRM BRER-SERERE  KRERE
KB BR -
KPI' A2.1 (“comply or explain”) Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Use of Resources — Energy P.74
by type in total and intensity. Consumption
R EMIERA2 1 BREAMESNERER SREEREE ZERER-HRER
([TEFRERE]D) BREE -
KPI A2.2 (“comply or explain”) Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of Resources — Water Consumption P.75
BEREBIERA2.2 BEKEREE - BREA — KRB
([TETHEE])
KPI'A2.3 (“comply or explain”) Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — Energy P.74
initiatives and results achieved. Consumption
R A IEEA2.3 LR B s B R R R - BERER—RAER
([TEFRBE]
KPI A2.4 (“comply or explain”) Description of whether there is any issue in - Use of Resources — Water Consumption P.75
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
IR ERIERA2.4 HSKEUER R I B EREE - A BERER-KFRER
([TEFRRE]D) REAAKSRSTERABFHR -
KPI'A2.5 (“comply or explain”) Total packaging material used for finished Not applicable — explained P.76

BB B MIEIRA2.5
(TTME-TRLARRE )

products (in tonnes) and with reference to
per unit produced

B mAAABEMHNEE
(K E)RBEEB(G

=
= °
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX EBBERIMAERATANK
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG 2 )
LIMITED (Continued) HEL 8

Subject Areas, Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page

Bl - —-BREEREEENER #Hd EH/ B9 RE

Aspect A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources
BEAS: BERAAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant  The Environment and Natural Resources P.76
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

—REE HEBTAHERERAREREKER RERRAER
FENHR -

KPI' A3.1 (“comply or explain”) Description of the significant impacts of The Environment and Natural Resources P.76
activities on the environment and natural — Noise Management
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

S48 IR R A3, 1 HEEBEHERERRABRNERX RERRKABER-BREERE

([TE-FRiERE]) TENERDERRHATYENTY -

Aspect B1: Employment

EBEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Employment — Compensation and P.76
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Benefits, Recruitment, Promotion,
regulations that have a significant impact Incentive and Dismissal, Equal
on the issuer relating to compensation Opportunity

and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ERBEXTEFMARATAMNCE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG B HERERBFERIIIARE
LIMITED (Continued) 5| %R (@)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page

H —-REERBEREXNESE #Hil B BH BH

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EBEB2: REEZ2

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Health and Safety — Internal Health and P.80
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Safety Management, Occupational
regulations that have a significant impact Safety Training, Fire Safety Training
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—MREE FRREZETIERERRBEERE REREZZ-AHRRERZER .
BEMEEN  (QBE: RO)EFTHE BER2HEI - BEHz2HI
TABEATZENHEBERRAONE
¥ e

Aspect B3: Development and

Training

BEB3 : #ERE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training — Training P.83
knowledge and skills for discharging duties Management, Training Courses
at work. Description of training activities.

— R FRARARERTIEBRENNBRE BREK)-HIER  HIIRE
BEEIBR - HLIBFNES -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EBHEB4 : T %A

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Labour Standards — Prevent Child and P.84

(b) compliance with relevant laws and Forced Labour
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
—REE BRAMEETHRHSTH : @EK: STEIA-HLEETRBHST
Rb)EFTHETABERZENHEBX
BRAOIEFR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
WYL~ shd KR E R (8)

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ERBAEX T A BR 2~ AR
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG B HE8RERBFERIIIARTE
LIMITED (Continued) 5| %R (@)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page

BEH —-REERBREREE @ EfBH BEY

Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management
BEBS: tEHEERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and Supply Chain Management — Supply P.85
social risks of the supply chain. Chain Environmental and Social
Risk Management, Fair and Open
Procurement
—REE ERHEEENIRE R GRREE - HEBEE -—HERRERMGAR

BE  RARRFRE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BEB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Product Responsibility — Quality of P.87
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Medical Service, Customer Service
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
—REE FRMRHERNRENEREZS2 S EREE-BERERE -
BE BERLBEEURBRAE B F R
B () RO)ETHERITABEKX
TENHBERRBAONER -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7: RES
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and Anti-corruption — Prevent Corruptionand ~ P.89
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Fraud
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
— R E FAVILHE R RFREEE k&R -IEES R EE
) ()BR - R(b)ETHBETABEAKR
FENHBERERAPNEH -

RAEREEELEESRAT —T-N\a45  JD



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
B - b E KA O ()

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ERBBERSFERAFANCE
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG B HERERBFERIIIARE
LIMITED (Continued) 5| %R (@)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page

BEH —-HREERBRERERE @M B/ BH Y

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEBS : #EBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Community Investment — Corporate P.90

understand the needs of the communities Social Responsibility
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—REE BN EL2ERBEREENTHET HERE-GCEHGERM
ENBEREEBEDEER
& R A IR

96 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

J% 0. % B vk

B &<t 8 FE 5% A R A G
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 106 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street EITH115
Central B ES

Hong Kong HRETITAE311E

FEEERREEREERSRAAKRR
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EECDERFI106EEF 268 HME R ERK
RREEXEEARAR(ERAR]) REWE
AE(BIERE]) 2EAMBHRER - EF
BRERZZE-NF+_A=+—BZHEHH
RAHmE BEZXALFEZHEERGEREM
EEHKRGEHRR SARAEPHRNGEAAETR
EX UEBAMBHREAME(BEHREIEES
BURBEE) -

ERR BEMBBRROCREZTBGMAD
BAREHMAG ) BEONETEYBRS
(TEEMBRELENDEEMQ TR
BEEER-_Z-N\E+_A=1t—BH&R
EMBRARBEZRALFE E5£ENES
MHERAMEGAEESRE  YERRBREL
(REMGOPD N EBEREZ SRS -

= —/

P

/\l

F 1

ReEaReREELEEERAT —=-A\FFmn  JJ



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)

3 57 A% B e (4

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

RRE®E

EEEREFESAMASRMOBTBREE
ABETTEZ - BERNZFEATHRER TR
EIRBMEREREAMBRRNEMT] 4
E— SR  RBREEGAMAGN(EES
sEmEEST DA HEFBIR EF
CWERBRTRHRITEMBREL - HFM
B BEEMESHNERERECTNRBEEWRE
FHERIEMER -

FAREREXEE
MRECFEARBEESNERIE  HEF
ERAFEGAVBRERAEZNETEH ° It
EEERNESERRAVBRERRALHEAEE
RE—HREE BETeUFEERTRH
2R

()8 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters
BREREE

Impairment assessment of intangible assets and
goodwill

HETEERBENRETMG

Refer to notes 3,17 and 18 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
28 SEGFEM B mRMEES 17KX18 -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had intangible assets
and goodwill of approximately HK$214,288,000 and
HK$229,010,000 respectively.
RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—0 EBEENEFEEERDE
7 h#)/5214,288,0007% 7T £ 229,010,000/ 7T °

In deciding whether the intangible assets and goodwill
were impaired or not, these assets were allocated to cash
generating units (“CGUs”) of health industry segment, and
the recoverable amount of the CGU was determined by
management and valuer based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant management judgement was
involved in respect of the discount rates and the underlying
cash flows. Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the intangible assets and goodwill.
RAETEBFEERBEBAEAHRRE  ZSFEESELER
REFNHRSEAEM((ReELEML])  ReEEEM
WA el e HEERERGEMZBESREANERE
EfEEEEF - UITRENZR S R EBITIRX LA
RenemEaREEE EEENEREEREERD
BRERIE -

How our audit address the key audit matters

EENERNMEEBRRERSEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the Group’s key businesses included:
ZEREREY BESEFZEBBETZARALEFE
7

* Assessing management’s identification of CGUs based on
the Group’s accounting policies and our understanding of
the Group’s business;

AZEERERE SRENgEREREEYH
BHIRARBRIIR S A B

BEREX

e Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used and the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the business and the relevant industry;
and
ST 0 A A (B 77 /AR A 1A
MBHEZMRER

FHXBMERITE

e Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

TR S T A8 A B R RO EREVE R ARREE

We found that the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.

BESRREERRARF BRI -

el

RaeEREEELEEsRAs —T aay I



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters
HREREE

Impairment assessment on loan to a shareholder and
short-term loans receivable

B FRREK EWEHE R RR AR ER G

Refer to notes 3, 26 and 27 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

28 BEEEGEMBEEWRMEES - 26 %27 -

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of loan
to a shareholder and short-term loans receivable were
approximately HK$28,574,000 and HK$40,048,000
respectively.

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—0  EFREERREWEH
BHIRIBHRIREESD 5149 428,574,0007 7T % 40,048,000
BT °

For the purpose of determining the allowance for loan
to a shareholder and short-term loans receivable, the
management considers the credit history including default
or delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of the loan to a shareholder
and short-term loans receivable.
REEETRREERREVEHERREBNEE  EBE
ZRBEETRREERREWSEHEHERIENZE ST
XA BRGEH  HEER KRR EEERHK -

100

How our audit address the key audit matters

EENERNMEEBRREERSEE

Qur procedures in relation to valuations of loan to a
shareholder and short-term loans receivable included:
ZEHE TRRER R ELE B R RIBF G TRRANEF
B -

e Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit limits and
credit periods given to shareholder and customers with
the management;

H BEREEEEN®REARTREREFEERE
RIEEHRRF

e Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment
of the loan to a shareholder and short-term loans
receivable; and
FHEEEEYHE TIRRER K EWE S ERREN R
B&FffE &

e Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of loan to a shareholder and short-term
loans receivable.

MR EE T IR B 5% FE WS A & SRR TE AR E AT
HETEIEER R AR o

We considered management’s conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.
EERRERENEREANGEER - -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Key Audit Matters
BREREE

Net realisable value of properties under development

BRRPUR ISR FE

We identified the determination of the net realisable value
(“NRV”) of the Group’s properties under development as a
key audit matter due to significant judgements involved in
the determination of the NRV and the estimation of future
cost to completion by the management of the Group.
EEHEF BESEREDYEZAIERFE( ATERF
BDHBNRBEREZEE  HHER ESEEBREETEA
B0 FE RAGFTARIOE TR AR /B E I R AT

The Group’s properties under development are stated
at the lower of cost and NRV. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group’s properties under development amounted to
HK$209,174,000.

EEEBERDTMENKARAIZR FEZBEEDRE -
RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H  EBEXEBZEEFMER
209,174,000/ 7T °

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the NRV is determined with reference to the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion for properties under
development and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

WANERE BT TSR M s P IR BR - AT IR FE IR — AR
BBRE R EAEEREMF TRERTYE 2R RE
HEHE PR B ET AN EESE -

(Continued)

How our audit address the key audit matters

EENERNMEEBRRERSEE

Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the properties under

development included:
EERBERPYEZAIERFEMRANZIEFEE

e Challenging the assumptions and judgements applied by
management in estimating the NRV including evaluating
the accuracy of management’s prior period estimation;

o EEFEEEEAE G AR  KETREH RS
A 2 fhEHRER B HI

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the management’s
estimation of the future costs to completion for the
properties under development, on a sampling basis, by
comparing them to the actual development costs of similar
completed properties of the Group and comparing to the
relevant market information; and

o UHIBKFAR WBREBERPVEZIRAKREIXAR BEEE
FREIE T BERRERA - WLBRE@ETSER
ELZ AR - M A EREEHERD Y EARKTHEAR
etz 68l &

e Assessing the appropriateness of the selling price
estimated by the management, on a sampling basis, by
comparing the estimated selling price to recent market
prices in the same projects or comparable properties,
based on the current market conditions in the real estate
industry and our knowledge of the Group’s business.

s MEAMBERBEURETEY BEXEXBZTHE A
AR - IERIE B KRR E 2 T TS ER R
HEBREITLLR - MBI EHHEERMZA

Bk
We found that the management’s estimates were supported

by the available evidence.
EERTBEERRABICEERFH -

RuEpeEEzERsRAs —z— ges 0]



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
B o7 A% B e (A

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

102

REPORT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
B o7 A% B e (A

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

"REPORT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going .
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the °
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial .
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

R L O

REEERAURELEREMN S5
ERERE  AURBCDEBROHEZR

FoE

CHRERTAY BEEEFELEDH
RENBRERRBOEHHIBEAFERKR
THEAE HEFHEGEAS/TFEEK
THERE BEFTRREARSE TR
ﬁ& FAEMBHRRANERE K

*&W%W@E%TE AEITES
WE%OEWW%ﬁM@i@%%ﬁ%
PHMESNEREERER  HERXK
EHHBERATREER EEETHEAE
ZE e AA E’j ﬁlé °

1R /\EM‘M&%( EEREE)NE
BIE - REERANET  UREEUBR
AREGEATRMEIBEEAZSI RS
H o

B EEEASERBRERTHOMS
EHESRENEZERRE  UNKAHM
BHRERBEXBR -HFEARKSE  E
BRHOTEENERIE - BFERET
ENERBERARE2HEEME -

FHREZZEEN (AP ERE)EX THFENG
BRERZHEREAELZER  BEES
2B b AR B M E R E KRR S

N

ENABEZZEQREXEN  HAFFCE

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, —r*ﬁ? BB EHEEESRK WA BHAEER

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that A& A]

RETEESTHNBEIMENBRREMEER

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where  FHEAG &8 (@B ) EB® -

applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we EBEMNEEZEZEZE L EBOZHED » RTFTHIL
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the FEBEH AFESZSVBERENEXZ IIERASE
consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore £ - A MEKBEREZEIE - BIEEEN AR
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ ATRHFABHEBNEEHE AN BEEHEBR
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the S EERAPENEEENAEESHOTE
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thata #“ RSB AT NBEESENFZEZM TER
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse $HETIFE - TR EZ @R ZERI RS Pl
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh & %718 -

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent H E B VBB ENEAEBTEETARS R
auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

o
it

<

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited HEFMELERERAA
Certified Public Accountants HEGETAD

Ng Ka Wah RRE

Practising Certificate Number: P06417 PEEBERY - P06417

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019 &EE —E-hAhF=ZAZThAH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A5 B T A B JU b 2 i MK 4 R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—_ZE— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FET FAT
! _______________________________________ ' _________________________________|]
Revenue WA 7 377,035 474,933
Cost of sales £ B (279,492) (391,552)
Gross profit E 7 97,543 83,381
Other income E A 9 3,627 63
Administrative expenses THE A (64,005) (40,683)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (1,318) (4,305)
Share of result of associates BEMERR XA 17,371 8,822
Profit from operations a8 S | 53,218 47,278
Fair value change on derivative financial liabilities #74 ¢ §i & & A T E & &) (2,438) (310)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A R d e - 12,617
Loss on deemed disposal of associates RIEH S8 AR E1E (571) -
Gain on derecognition of convertible note HIEER AR ER 2 W 7,391 -
Finance cost B 75 B AR 10 (37,724) (41,346)
Profit before income tax & F5 Al S A 11 19,876 18,239
Income tax expense FriSFi 2 13 (8,768) (8,798)
Profit for the year FE i 11,108 9,441
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, Hi2m(BAX) K -
net of income tax EHIBRATBH
Items that may be reclassified subsequent to HEMEBEH nHE
profit or loss B aIE H
Exchange differences on translating foreign BPEIBINEREL 2B
operations HER (27,317) 45,133
Reclassification on disposal of interests in BEFSBLENRB AR
subsidiaries = - (298)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1 & FE# 5 E 21570718 H
Change in value of equity investments at fair BEEMmEERKRTEA
value through other comprehensive income FEFEZBREREE
=84 2,067 -
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FEHMEE (X)W
for the year, net of income tax @ BHRAER (25,250) 44,835
Total comprehensive (expense)/income EEZE(EX) WHE
for the year 4 (14,142) 54,276
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Confinued
A £y 1R AR M Lt 4 i g A e (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_ZF— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt it FERT FAT
Profit for the year attributable to: EEEERR
Owners of the Company KRARER A 2,160 1,422
Non-controlling interests JEIE RS RE 25 8,948 8,019
11,108 9,441
Total comprehensive (expense)/income EEEE2E (X))
for the year attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF SN (12,988) 31,648
Non-controlling interests JEPE IR (1,154) 22,628
(14,142) 54,276
Earnings per share for the year attributable ZXATEEBEAZEFEER
to owners of the Company 27 15
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) HEAREE(FBREMW) 0.07 0.05

RuEREEELERsRAs —T—ges |07



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A4 5 W55 R UL 1 K

As at 31 December 2018 RR-_Z—\F+_-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
k23 FET FAT
! _______________________________________ ' _________________________________|]
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEEE N KRG 16 30,106 240,148
Intangible assets EEE 17 214,288 221,095
Goodwill GHES 18 229,010 229,010
Interests in associates JTA RN B - ey 19 223,789 211,272
Equity investments at fair value through other FEREAM TR E
comprehensive income BERAVEGSE 2 KE
®E 21 77,684 -
Available-for-sale financial assets HESREE 21 - 76,395
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2% - T8 5018 & H
J& U5 k1A 22 111,350 94,673
886,227 1,072,593
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other & BRAZIEREAM
receivables FE WK IR 22 135,266 125,400
Trade receivables B E 5 I8 23 31,351 12,771
Inventories & 24 29,062 5,092
Properties under development FE R 25 209,174 -
Loan to a shareholder BEIREER 26 28,574 49,143
Short-term loans receivable fEU R BRE R 1E 27 40,048 40,200
Bank and cash balances HRITRIRE R 28 8,016 67,038
481,491 299,644
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B E 5 RIE 29 442 824
Accruals, deposits received and other EstaE - cWiRE R
payables H th 8 1< FR I8 30 35,574 68,812
Contract liabilities cREE 30 87,227 -
Obligation under finance leases RMEHERE 31 367 6
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 36 16,138 12,204
Convertible notes Al AR E & 33 - 75,480
Derivative financial liabilities TETRAR 33 - 7,316
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREENMEMES 35 213,209 120,893
Tax payable J& 1-F 758 18 2,811 820
355,768 286,355
Net current assets RBEEFE 125,723 13,289
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERABER 1,011,950 1,085,882
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
A 6 B IR D ¥ (A1)

As at 31 December 2018 RR-_Z—\F+_-_HA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k2 FHET T&T
L' |
Capital and reserves ERRFE
Share capital A% 7 32 29,962 29,962
Reserves E 720,535 735,371
Equity attributable to owners of the NRRER AL
Company T 7 750,497 765,333
Non-controlling interests eI AR fE = 211,730 212,878
Total equity RAEREE 962,227 978,211
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAG 34 15,157 14,949
Obligation under finance leases mEHEEMT 31 983 25
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREEREMNES 35 33,583 92,697
49,723 107,671
1,011,950 1,085,882

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for 4R E M SRR EARNRIESZT e N T — L F
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2019 and =A==+ A B#/ERB#EZEMG - T H R R

are signed on its behalf by: P
Cheung Wai Kuen Cheng Hau Yan
RERE [
Director Director
EFE EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated f#F& M EBMRM T G LM BHRERN — 2D o
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Aok 45 B £k 5 ) R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—_ZE— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

Equty
investment
atfarvate Attributable
through other Share to non-
Share Share  Translation comprchensie  Statutory ~ options Other  Retaingd controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve inoomeregve reseve  reseve  reseve  eamings  Sub-fofal interests equity
8
R2Eha
BOTA
HEYA EhE R ReER
Ba  REEE  EXRE  RERE  tEER BE EpEE  REE N hRER 4
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKG0O0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000
Thr Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr Tt THr  TEr  TEr TEr T
I e ) I N A
At 1 January 2017 RE-tE-f- 6962 42519 [45,472) - 8,436 3,836 (59.029) 104985 463916 203634 667,550
Proft or the year EERT - - - - - - V) 12 809 9
Other comprehensive income A2 EhE
Exchange differences on EEBERLE
tranglating oreign operations EEERER
arising during the year - - 28843 - - - - - 2843 14,600 43452
Share of other comprehengiveinoome.~ ZEBED 7
of associates ORI - - 1,681 - - - - - 1,681 - 1681
Reclassficaton on disposal o BB ENRAT
inerests in subsiciries s = = 299 - - - - - (299 - (299
Total comprehensive income ERRINAEE
for the year - - 30,226 - - - - 142 31,648 2,628 54276
Acquision of subsicires (note 41 WERBLAHH) 4000 256,000 - - - - - - B000 T %07
Change in non-controling inerests WERBLAAE .
arising from acquisiton of FihEsEs
subsidiares (note 43) i) = = = = = = 9,769 - 9,769 (9,769 -
Disposel of subsicaries (ofe 420) ERBLRWp) - - - - (334 - - 334 - Y 3%
Lapse of share opfons BRER = = = = - 38 - 38% - = =
Transferto statutory resenve BETITRR = - - - 3,08 - - By - - -
At 31 Decamogr 017 KBt
+=A=t-A 20962 661,19 (15,246) - 11130 - (49260) 107549 766333 212878 978211
Il applcation of HKFRS 9 ENEREANGSS
EHIZ0% - - - (190 - - N A K B (4689
As restated JUEF] 29962 661,19 (15,246) (1,191) 11,130 - (492600 104308 760986 21253 973522
Profit for th year EEH = - - - - - - 2,160 2,160 8048 11,108
Other comprehensive income U e
Exchange diferences on EREERIHEL
translating foreign operations JENER
arising during the year - - (13869 - - - - - (18869 (11011 (24800
Change nvalue of equityvestments B2 Al
atfar value through other BOTEHEY
compreensive income RERERERY - - S AL - - - - 1158 0w
Share of other comprehensive inome o EERENR]Z
45500iates LD - - s - - - - - P - P
Total comprehensive (expenses)income 2T (BR) /i
for the yea % - - (65 118 - - S0 (% [ (44
Change in non-controling inferests HE-FHBAREL Y
arising from disposal of FrhERs
asubsidary fote 43 (i) - - - - - - 2499 - 2499 8 2847
Transfer to statutory resenve ERTITER - - - - 666 - - (666) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=A=t-A 20962 661,19 (31,552 (33 11,79 - (6761) 105887 750497 21730 96227
1100 cOMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

o 15 HE 4% 5 B % (A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_ZF— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

SHARE PREMIUM

The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The share premium
account may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

TRANSLATION RESERVE

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of
the Group’s foreign operations from their functional currencies to
the Group’s presentation currency (Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)) are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
foreign operations.

STATUTORY RESERVE

The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the statutory reserve fund
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Appropriations to such
reserve fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

SHARE OPTIONS RESERVE

The share options reserve comprises the fair value of the share options
granted which are yet to be exercised. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profit when the related options
being lapsed.

OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration
paid to obtain additional non-controlling interests in subsidiaries and its
carrying amount on the date of acquisition.

igripi N

B EBZERYXBRE-NAN-—FRAZX
(BIERT) FA0EMRE - RN EERAIERE
RERFZABRTADIK °

BE X 18

AEEBIEBCEEFEHRENERTERE
RAEBEZZ2EB (BT [BT)HEZ
ERER BENAMEZEARETERRRNE
AEET R  ZFRELREPRAZE
AEBBRHEBIEBEREF D BERAR
A o

5 TE i 18

AEBZEZERBETPEARANMB(HE]D)
MAERES - AR EETENEB QA
EETBERRAARKREEN - ZBETRF
BEREETBEHRRAARBRZENN10%
HRBEEBTEMMBRREMERNN50%8
BRoN - AERBAIARNBEREBEFEER (W
B) RAUNRBEARBETHTABRASTBENE
RAIWEN »

BRERE

BRERBERESRLERRTEZERER
FE - WEEBREETERS  FHRSESE
BERMEER  INBEABERERSNE A
BERANEBESRELH

H o 5 45

H At 7% 5 48 B ENEE SN B X R SRR BB s A
SNRERENKBER ZREENZRE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
B ER R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—_ZE— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

| I 2 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED =~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaF THET FHET
! _______________________________________ ' _________________________________|]
Cash flows from operating activities REREXEB2HERE
Profit before tax R B4 Al 19,876 18,239
Adjustments for: HRBEIE 2%
Interest income B WA (12,271) (23,921)
Interest expense A EFX 10 37,724 41,346
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BBRLRETE 16 14,229 8,474
Written-off plant and equipment W sE R B K 5% 730 -
Impairment losses reversed in respect of trade JFEUE 5 FRIA KR E B 1B
receivables # 23 (30) -
Impairment losses recognised in respect of other  H i Jf& U 2% 18 7 32 19 8 (B
receivables E518 22 3,702 -
Impairment losses reversed in respect of loanto a  f& F AR B & 7 ) 5 B &5 18
shareholder £ @l 26 (46) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k= BN 42 - (12,617)
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate BIEHEME R AEE 19 571 -
Share of result of associates B E N R 2 EE (17,371) (8,822)
Gain on derecognition of convertible note WILERATBRRKER 2
W= (7,391) -
Fair value change on derivative financial TESMTARNFEES
instruments 2,438 310
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEHAZ
working capital REBERE 42,161 23,009
Increase in trade receivables U E 5 R IEE (17,968) (4,720)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEEM) R (23,970) 13,788
Increase in deposits, prepayment and e BRFIEREMEK
other receivables TRIA L N (20,214) (90,909)
Decrease in trade payables i 1‘1‘ B 5z IE VRS (420) (468)
Decrease in loan from associates B & A B 8 FOR - (12,300)
Increase in contract liabilities BB BN 87,227 _
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits received [EETFUE ~ B Wit & K EM
and other payables PR RIE OB ),/ (48,660) 32,743
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities K8 /(AR ) &S £ 2
Re 18,156 (38,851)
Bank interest received 2 R 1T F B 6 24
Income tax paid EfAER (10,480) (10,845)
Net cash generated from/(used in) R®E(AR)ReEE 2
operating activities BEFE 7,682 (49,672)
Cash flows from investing activities REREEBEHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - KBRRE (25,531) (20,946)
Loan interest received B E FFE 12,265 23,897
Dividend received from an associate BN R E WA E 19 1,325 2,650
Net cash outflow on acquisition of associate WEEEE 2 N al /IR &
PRt - (90,025)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARMNRSE
T E R 41 - (48,388)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
A 0 B T B R (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_ZF— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K e FER FHBT

Net cash inflow from disposal of partial interest HE—RNBARIY

in a subsidiary BERERANFEE 43 2,847 -
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRRNE S

MAF R 42 - 67,899

Changes in loan to a shareholder BEYREREZRES 20,615 28,404

Changes in short-term loans receivable FEU K HR B SR BR 1B # &) - 18,000

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing KB/ (BRBREZ£K 2

activities B FE 11,521 (18,509)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEEBZBERE
Proceeds from issue of guaranteed notes BIIEREBREF 2B

and bonds, net of related expenses SRIE - MBRABEZH 8,028 48,402
Repayment of borrowings and bonds EBEREEIRES (65,004) (7,000)
Interest paid B F A (19,307) (24,021)
Repayment of convertible notes BEAHRER (1,000) (16,000)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEERERE 36 11,138 12,204
Addition of obligation under a finance lease BERERTEM 1,500 38
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease EEMERERM (181) (13
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR) /REBEEEEE

financing activities ZHEFE (64,826) 13,610

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERBESLEEHEE

W FE (45,623) (54,571)

Cash and cash equivalents FHAZEERAELEEER

at the beginning of the year 67,038 109,721
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgEssTE (13,399) 11,888
Cash and cash equivalents FRZESRELEEER

at the end of the year 8,016 67,038
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash ReRHESEHEER

equivalents B
Bank and cash balances RITRIAE B 8,016 67,038

RaeEREEELEEERAT —T—aen | )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y05 o Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—_ZE— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

1.

114

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The
directors of the Company consider its parent and ultimate holding
company is Champion Dynasty Limited (a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability). The addresses of
the Company’s registered office and principal office in Hong Kong
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49.

1.

—REHR

ARARR—FHRARETMERILZ X
PERARARARRROREBHE R
SHBERAR([EBZP]) B o KRAFA]
EERA EBRREKREERRATAR
REBHEBRESEMAZZAR AR
Champion Dynasty Limited o &NA®&E
MRERLEETEZEIENF R MU
MAER[RAIER | —HPIKE -

EAMBHREUET(EITI)ZY
BAMRARAEENMBAR (AL
B)ZeEEs KA BRAN - FE
BEHNBRAAZSHEEOZ TUH(TE
)

ARARZEBEBAKREER HXB
WBRARZ EBEBHRME49 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ B 05 i A MR (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_ZF— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amended standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new and amended HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institution of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”):

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property

HKAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current year and prior year and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The above new HKFRSs have been applied in accordance
with the relevant transition provisions in the respective
standards and amendments which results in changes in
accounting policies, amounts reported and/or disclosures as
described below.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ B 5 e A MR (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

(@) Impact on the consolidated financial statements

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the application of new HKFRSs have not
been included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers
provided. The adjustments are explained in more detail

by standard below.

Gonsolidated statement of
financial position (extract)

31 December
2017
“E-tF
t=A=+-A
HK$'000

HAMBRRBR (F%) TRL

(a) MR FE RGN £
] &2

i

MzER
R 37 5] & 12 5T R

@ HELHBHRENZE

TRETHE

{8 7118 B # R

HE - @%E%U\IEI)EFH%/?

SR
B2EE - FiL

& B

==

T RETE P 12

E|J 2/

HZBFENAEABEEZ D
5t - BRARAERTRE

it R
FEHARE -

HKFRS 9
ERMBRE
RAFR
HK$'000
TR

HKFRS 15
ERMBAE
EAF15%
HK$'000
ThEL

1 January
2018
E-N\%
-A-H
HK$'000
TRET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets FE4@EE 76,395 (76,395) - -
Equity investments at fair value @ E 1 2 Bz

through other comprehensive &AL (E:tE 2

income RiERE = 75,617 - 75,617
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables B E 53708 12,771 (67) - 12,704
Deposits, prepayments and Re  BEZEREM

other receivables fE Yz R 125,400 (3,608) - 121,792
Short-term loans receivable el e E RERTE 40,200 (152) - 40,048
Loan to a shareholder EFREER 49,143 (84) - 49,059
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposit received and ~ FETFUE - EMIRS R

other payables H e 308 68,812 - (35,342) 33470
Contract liabilties ANAE - - 35,342 35,342
Capital and reserves BEXK G
Reserves s 735,371 (4,347) - 731,024
Non-controlling interest FERER 212,878 (342) = 212,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 3 B B e A W

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

(%)

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“HKFRS 157)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current reporting year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
“Revenue” and the related interpretations.

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of healthcare
industry which included medical anti-aging and health
preservation base, medical and healthcare industry
investment management, trading of natural health food and
investment and finance activities.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 15

The Group recognises revenue mainly from sales of natural
health food and services income from medical beauty
business.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in the note 3 to consolidated financial
statement.

The application on HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the
Group’s retained earnings at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 B B e A W (4

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—_ZE— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EREBUEBREERN(] &
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MEHEER ) 2 #ET RIEFT
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) R 2N ()

(@ New and amendments to HKFRSs that are (a) RMEFERBERZER
mandatorily effective for the current year Bt % 3 & 2% Bl #7 5] R 18 5] IR
(Continued) I (E)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” EBUBREEREISHEFEF
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued) BRI |([BEEBBEREER
FE15% 1) (%)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of BXAEREEMBHREERNE155
HKFRS 15 (Continued) FEMM(E)
The following adjustment was made to the amounts LTHRAEZEDIRERERERBEH(ZF
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position —NE—A—RB)NES B RHR
at the date of initial application (1 January 2018). Line XAZAHLEEL - AT
items that were not affected by the changes have not been ZE2MERBTTBEENAN
included.
Carrying Carrying
amount amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
REEBHE
H|EER
KRR F15% R
—E—tf —E-N\%§
+=B=+-H —B—8#1
EHEMNEREE B¥SE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHT
! ! _____________________ ________________|
Current Liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits received and AR - Edize R EA
other payables FE 1 508 68,812 (35,342) 33,470
Contract liabilities BHER - 35,342 35,342
At the date of initial application, included in the accruals, REXERBH EFfxE- B
deposits received and other payables amounting to Wie REMENKREHR BE
HK$28,742,000 and HK$6,600,000 are related to deposits 28,742,000 % 7T & 6,600,000 #
received from customers on sales of natural health food and T DO RBRIEERARER R
deferred income for medical beauty business respectively. MEKEFP IR REBEERNER
These balances were reclassified to contract liabilities upon ZIBELERA - ZEEBRERETE
application of HKFRS 15. BB HmELENEIGREEEH S

RENEE-
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

2

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 157) (Continued)

Significant financing component

For contracts where the period between the payment by the
customer and transfer of the promised property or service
exceeds one year, the transaction price should be adjusted
for the effects of a financing component, if significant. The
Group has assessed that the financing component effect was
insignificant.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 and the
related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for (1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2)
expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and (3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
earnings and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

2.

EEEREREXEEERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A B S5 e A B RE (%81)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—_ZF— \F+_A=+—HILtFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ B 5 e A MR (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE_—Z

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERERBUKBREERN([HE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MBREER ) 25T RIEE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) AR 7S ()

(@ New and amendments to HKFRSs that are (a) R FEERFER 2T R
mandatorily effective for the current year Bt % 3 & 2% Bl #7 5] R 18 5] IR
(Continued) 7R ()

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) EBBEREEREIN [/

(Continued) TE(BEBHEHREERFEI
9 (&)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of BRERERYEREEANFIR

HKFRS 9 FEENEERE

() Classification and measurement (i) DERIFE
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The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018.

TRHAPRERERBHR-F
—NE-A-BREBEEEMH
BEEANEIRRBFBGTE
AIEIORARFAHEEEIER
RNETHEENTREBAR
Hit B D ENMGE -

Available-for- Equity
sale financial investments
assets at FVTOCI
FREMEE

Wiz A FE

FTEERMEE FAEIRERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FA&T

Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RIEEB S ERLSE

under HKAS 39 MR T —+F
+=—A=+—82
H 4R i8R 76,395 —
Initial application of HKFRS 9: BRERBEBMB®RE
AERIE 95 -
Reclassification from available-for-sale EFEcmMEEETND
financial assets to equity investments HEABHME2EK
at fair value through other comprehensive BAFEFEB
income (“FVTOCI”) E m% EL G2 /NS
BDHAERERE (76,395) 76,395
Opening balance at 1 January 2018, RZZE-NF—H—H
as restated ZEW KR (RES) = 76,395




2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

From Available-for-sale financial assets to equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”)

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income for the fair value changes of all its unquoted equity
investments previously unquoted measured at cost less
impairme